o i ’*‘m%

ﬁf# Medinah
# Park District %
B i

Medinah Park District

%
g =00 Regular Board Meeting Agenda
| J August 20, 2025 6:30PM
‘f*\ Ve Connolly Recreation Center
%% :f 22W130 Thorndale Avenue, Medinah, IL.
gt
AGENDA
1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call of Commiissioners
4. Recognize Staff Present
5. Agenda - Changes and/or Approval
6. Approval of Consent Agenda
A Approval of June 18, 2025 Executive Session Minutes
B. Approval of July 23, 2025 Special Meeting Minutes
C. Approval of july 24, 2025 Special Meeting Minutes
D. Approval of August 20, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
E. Approval of Monthly Disbursements
1. Past and Future Bills as Presented — 8/19/2025 $4,078.24 8/26/25 $5,243.39 8/27/25 $6,348.67
9/8/25 $12,301.16
2. Payroll Related Expenses — August, 2025 $75,530.87
Total $103,502.33
7. Staff Reports
8. Citizen Comments (3 minutes per speaker with maximum comment period of 30 minutes)
9, Written or Verbal Communication from Citizens to Board/Staff
10. Executive Director's Report
A. Notes
1. Commissioners Park parking
2. NEDSRA
3. OSLAD/DCEO Grant updates
4. SD#11 Art Display
B. Items for Discussion
1. Otis Elevator
11. Commissioner Comments
12. Old Business/Action ltems
A ltems removed from Consent Agenda (if necessary)
B. FOIA
C METRA agreement
13. New Business
A.
14, Executive Session ~ 120/2(C)1 - Personnel & 120/2(C)5S — Real Estate Property
15. Other Business
A Resolution 25-16: Executive Session Minutes Review
16. Adjournment

Page | 1






Medinah Park District

Minutes of the Regular Meeting

August 20, 2025 6:30PM

Connolly Recreation Center

22W130 Thorndale Avenue, Medinah, IL.

The regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Medinah Park District, DuPage County, Illinois was
held on Wednesday, August 20, 2025 at the Connolly Recreation Center, 22W 130 Thorndale Avenue, Medinah,
IL.

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 6:32 PM by President Neitzke.

Pledge of Allegiance

Oath of Office — Gokhan Cukurova

Roll Call

Commissioners Present:

Alyssa Neitzke, President

Irene Jarocinski, Vice President
Jaclyn Scafidi, Commissioner
Gokhan Cukurova, Commissioner
Commissioners Absent: None

Staff Present:

Steven Muenz, Executive Director, Board Secretary
Maria Piworski, Superintendent of Finance/HR
Vince DeGrado, Superintendent of Parks

Dan Touzious, Asst. Supervisor of Parks

Jim Huetson, Superintendent of Recreation

Public in Attendance
Jason Carpenter, Peggy Ott, Kataryne Nowak, Brooks Wogelius, Catherine Z, Anna Rakowski, Jean Ott

Quorum

Commissioner Neitzke recognized a quorum.

Approval of Agenda

President Neitzke asked if there were any additions, corrections, or deletions to the agenda. Director Muenz
stated the agenda could move forward as amended. It was moved by President Neitzke, and seconded by
Commissioner Jarocinski to approved the agenda as amended. President Neitzke asked for discussion. There

was none.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Page | 1



Aye: AN, 1], ]S, GC
Nay: None.

Absent: None
Motion Carried.

Approval of Consent Agenda

President Neitzke asked if there were any requests to remove items from the consent agenda. Hearing none,
President Neitzke asked for a motion. It was moved by Commissioner Scafidi and seconded by President
Neitzke to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. President Neitzke asked for discussion. There was none.

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Aye: 1J,JS, GC, AN
Nay: None

Absent: None
Abstain: None
Motion Carried.

Staff Reports
A. Financial Report — Commissioner Scafidi thanked Supt. Piworski for procuring the $5,000 donation for

Harvest Fest from Itasca Bank. Commissioner Scafidi would be glad to solicit for additional donations for
Harvest Fest. Supt. Huetson said we will be charging for the venues at Harvest Fest this year. Commissioner
Scafidi said it looks like a few items look like they have been inflated, they should be at 3.5% that is the rate of
inflation. She also has some questions about the rental budget increases as well as summer camp numbers.
Supt. Huetson explained how this is figured. And the board has 3 opportunities to review the budget before it is
approved. Commissioner Jarocinski said that the website still lists Goodenough Park and it is now
Commissioners Park. Ex. Director Muenz said the new sign has not been put in place yet. Commissioner
Jarocinski then asked about the payment from the Village of Itasca. Ex. Dir. Muenz said he has reached out to
the attorney and has not heard back yet. Commissioner Scafidi asked additional questions regarding the
payment.

B. Recreation Report — None

C. Risk Management Report — None

D. Parks/Maintenance Report — None

Commissioner Scafidi asked about budgeted funds for the repair of the light at the sled hill. Commissioner
Scafidi asked about funds for playgrounds that have not been budgeted but not spent. Supt. DeGrado stated
those funds will be spent on playgrounds in the fall.

Citizen Comments 6:54 pm

Jean Ott question regarding property boundaries. She will be happy to provide a copy of the letter she received
from the Village of Itasca. Jean Ott stated she was disappointed the Casio trip was cancelled. Jean Ott stated the
plaques for Maryann Grygiel and Augie Felcan had been decided upon previously and asked about leaves for
the donation wall.

Written/Verbal Communication from Public to Staff/Commissioners

Commissioner Scafidi said a resident asked if the board would like her to be the recording secretary and have a
third party process the Board Meeting minutes. Another resident asked if they could have the Goodenough Park
sign for nostalgic purposes. President Neitzke said some residents are concerned about the new MyRec system
when registering for sports it was asking for age instead of grade. Supt. Huetson stated a few items were
incorrectly entered and have since been corrected.

Page | 2



Attornev Report
None.

Director’s Report — Notes
Commissioners Park Parking — Still reaching out to Bloomingdale Township and have not heard back regarding
an engineer to look at the project.

NEDSRA - Golf Classic taking place on September 11, 2025 if any commissioners are interested in attending
please let Ex. Dir. Muenz know. Elevator work is ramping up at the Addison Park District and it still waiting
inspection. NEDSRA Ex. Dir. Jerry Barton will be scheduling times to attend board meeting from the various
11 districts who make up NEDSRA. His visit will be added to an upcoming agenda.

OSLAD/DECO grant updates — Still waiting on the $200,000 payment for the OSLAD several governmental
agencies still need to approve the payment/check. Ex. Director Muenz has reached out to Representative
Sanilitro’s office about the DECO grant, and state is still waiting on approval, no definitive timeline at this time.
Possible Spring of 2026 for new HVAC system for Walnut Room.

Items for Discussion

Meacham Creek Park Natural Area — Do we want to start process to look into rezoning for natural playground.
Commissioner Scafidi stated the county representative said the application would have no problems being
approved, and it would be a 3 to 6 month long process.

President Neitzke stated educational signs can be installed and the area can be used for scavenger hunts. She
stated the State of Illinois offers a grant for educational signage.

2026 OSLAD Grant Cycle — The cycle deadline is September, which does not leave much time to include a
project for 2026. Staff will review upcoming projects and review funding. Commissioner Scafidi asked what
funds it will take to keep up with what the district currently has and how to sustain the district.

Commissioners Comments:

Commissioner Scafidi — Asked about a Google survey and if that can be sent to the community. It can be email
blasted and left at the front desk for pickup.

Should the district continue to send out the brochure. She stated a postcard with a QR code may be used and the
district spends funds mailing the brochure and it has not been delivered to her house. Commissioner Scafidi
asked if the updated mailing list has been received. She suggested the brochure not be delivered, but have a
limited supply at the Connolly Recreation Center for those who would like to pick one up.

Suggested a list of items volunteers would be able to assist with and what volunteers may be able to do. With
the recreation department short staffed with the absence of an Athletic Supervisor, suggested creating a
volunteer committee to complete those responsibilities.

Commissioner Cukurova — Stated that staff has discussed the elevator and should look into another company for
the needed project. Requested the Board receive the current Otis Elevator contract.
He asked if the staff is using any items to track social media and stated information should be centralized to see

where people are spending time on line.
Mentioned the national average of revenue to park districts by way of registration fees is 24% and the Medinah
Park District falls below that.

Old Business/Action Items

Page |3



A. Items Removed from consent agenda (if necessary)

B. FOIA Requests - None

C. Maryann Grygiel Memorial — It was suggested to install the memorial bench for Maryann Grygiel to the
newly created butterfly garden in Thorndale Park.

It was moved by Commissioner Scafidi and seconded by Commissioner Cukurova to approve the purchase and
installation of a memorial bench for Maryann Grygiel at the newly created butterfly park. President Neitzke
asked for discussion. There was none.

ROLE CALL VOTE:
Aye: GC, AN, 1], JS
Nay: None

Absent: None
Motion Carried

D. Meacham Creek Natural Area — It was moved by President Neitzke and seconded by Commissioner Scafidi
to begin the application process for the zoning variance at Meacham Creek Park. President Neitzke asked for
discussion. There was none.

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Aye: AN, 1], JS, GC
Nay: None

Absent: None
Motion Catried

New Business

A. Resolution 25-15

It was moved by President Neitzke and seconded by Commissioner Scafidi to approve Resolution 25-15,
allowing the purchase of a memorial plaque for Mr. Augie Felcan not to exceed $500. President Neitzke asked
for discussion. There was none.

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Aye: JS,GC, AN, lJ
Nay: None

Absent: None
Motion Carried

Other Business

A. Financial Sustainability Seminar — Commissioners Scafidi and Jarocinski attended the seminar and discussed
deferred maintenance concerns and what needs maintenance currently and what will need maintenance in the
future. Questioned what the costs will be to redo the parking lots at Thorndale Park and that funds should be
budgeted each year for upkeep on lots. Spoke about the previously discussed extension of the building and if
there are not funds to maintain, an initial project cannot be completed. There are a lot of park districts and towns
that are failing due to the lack of planning. Jamie Sabbach is available for consultation for the district, but her
fees are $100,000.

Page | 4



Executive Session
It was moved by President Neitzke and seconded by Commissioner Scafidi to move to executive session
regarding 120/2(C)1 — Personnel at 8:14pm. President Neitzke asked for discussion. There was none.

ROLL CALL VOTE:
Aye: 1J,JS, GC, AN
Nay: None

Absent: None

Motion Carried

Adjournment
It was moved by President Neitzke and seconded by Commissioner Scafidi to adjourn the regular meeting of

August 20, 2025 at 9:57 PM. President Neitzke asked for discussion. There was none.

All in favor: Ayes (4) AN, 1J,JS, GC
Opposed: Nays (0)

Absent:  (0)

Motion Carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Steven Muenz, Board Secretary Alyssa Neitzke, Board President

Date: August 20, 2025

Page | §



MEDINAH PARK DISTRICT
FINANCIAL REPORT

August 2025

REGULAR ILLINOIS FUNDS ACCOUNT

BEGINNING BALANCE 7/31/25 oot $ 537,45943

State of Illinois Replacement Tax............oooeiiiiiiiiiiiniiin, $ 1,796.08

................................................... e 8 539,255.51

Interest Earned 8/31/25 .. oottt $ 2,030.37

ENDING BALANCE 8/31/25 ..o $  541,285.88

PRIME FUND BOND ACCOUNT

BEGINNING BALANCE 7/31/25 oot $ 23,302.93
Interest Earned 8/31/25. ... i $ 87.78
ENDING BALANCE 8/31/25 ...ovivieieeeeteeeeeneee e 3 23,390.71
MONEY MARKET ACCOUNT

BEGINNING BALANCE 7/31/25 ..o §  135,027.82

Interest Earned 8/31/25 .....ciievierececicrecccecenenns s $ 508.72

ENDING BALANCE 8/31/25 ...ciiteteicieeriiniereeieiee e $ 135,536.54

DPC Tax Revenue deposited into Itasca Bank........................ $ 28,240.76



09°6kC ONIINIYd 0000kFS—-00-0T

§202/61/80 isIomTdu SALYId MSEd ANV SAYV¥D SSANISNd
X pTed 00°0 0%°'6FC GZ0¢/61/80 §20Z/61/80 SNTd ONIINIY¥d 0TLS
0TLYS

6L°8% JONYNILNIVWN HTOIHAA 0006G6G6-0T-0T

§202/61/80 TysxomTdu SAITAANS TAMOW
X pTed 00°0 6L°8G §Z0Z/61/80 GZ02/61/80 *ONI ‘INOZOIAY 60L9
60L9

67 9% dIYddd ¥ INIVW "dIndd IDIJ40 ZPS0EG-00-0¢

6C" 97 dI¥ddd ® INIVW "dIN0d FD0IA40 CrS0EG~00-0T

§202/61/80 TysaomTdu G2/6¢/6-G2/0€/9 dSYAT NOIILYIS TIVRW
X pTed 00°0 8G°¢C6 S20¢/61/80 §20C/61/80 SEMOE AANLIL 80L9
80L9

05°2r0'T SEEA AHUNIOLILY 00T0ES-00-0T

§Z0Z/61/80 Tysaomtdu GZ0¢ ATIAL SIADIAYHAS TYOHAT
A pPTed 00°0 06°2v0°T GZ02/61/80 GZ02/61/80 *O°d MNITO TIONY SHDIAI0 MYT LOLY
LOLY

66 GG SUDIAYIS T¥NLOYHLNOD 8990£5-00~0¢

99°0€1 SHOTIAYES TYALOYAILNOD 8990£5-00-0T

SZ0Z/61/80 Tyszomtdu GZ/6/6~0T/8 EDOIAYMAS LIANYALNI
X pTed 00°0 G9°981 GZ02/61/80 GZ02/61/80 ISYOWOD 90L9
90L9

1 LGE HOIAYES HHONIAYOS 0G€0€S-0T~-0T

G202/61/80 Tysaomtdu GC0Z "90¥ dMMOId HSWIL
A pTeq 000 ¢1°LGE §20Z/61/80 S202/61/80 I¥SOdSId SYHHLOYY dO0T1d G0LY
S0LY

£€9°6L HSNEAXE dEMES ANV ddI¥M 000 LS-00-02

P9 6L ASNEAXY ¥YIMIS ANV ¥IALVYM 000¥LS~-00-01

GZ20¢2/61/80 TyszomTdu dILYA A¥YEY FDIAYES ¥AMIAS ANY ¥ALYM
X bted 00°0 LCT6GT GZ0¢2/61/80 GZ0cZ/61/80 dTIAS0d 40 d9YTITIIA 70L9
F0LY

€9°6L ISNEAXE ¥IMES ONY ddIvM 000V LS-00-0C

o 6L ASNIdXE ¥EAMAS ANV JdALYM 000%LS-00-0T

§202/61/80 TysIomtdu dIVA A¥dy d0TAMIS dEMAS dANY dFIYM
N PTOoA 00°0 0070 SZ02/11/80 §20¢/11/80 ATTIS0d 0 FOVYTITIA €0L9
£0L9

uoTINgTIISIA 19
@3eq 3sodg Ag poasiuy uoT3drtaosaqg #3739y aug
pazITuip sn3e3ls  eng Juy Uy AUT s3eg ong 83eq Aul JIOPUBA wnN AUl

aIv¥d dINY NEJO HLO9
JIZITYNYAOLNA ANV JIAZITYNINOL HIod STJ XIed YBUTIPSKW :d€d
GTO0Z/61/80 ~ SZ0Z/61/80 SHIVA IS0d Tysaxomtdu :xespn
€/1 :obeg LOTULSIA MUVd HYNICQEW ¥04d Ld0ddY ¥HELSIOEY HdDIOANI

Nd 8T ¢T §20C/61/80



867691 SINIAT TYIDHALS 005€86-02-0¢

P2 91 SADIAYIS TYNLIOYALNOD 8990€6-00-0¢

06°LE SHDIAYES TYNIOTILNOD 8990€5-00-0T

B0 VE SASNAAXE SOOINVITIDSIN 00166S6-00-0T

00°€0T d9Y.LS0d 00077S~00-0T

06 06L SAILIAILOVY /S4Idl dTAIA dWYD dIHHAS SLLEBS-0C-0C

96799 SAIT4d4NS IDIAJ0 000TFS-00-0¢

F6°99 SHITAANS HADIJdC 0001¥S-00-0T

00°€8L"T SAILIAILOY /SdI¥l QTEIA dWYD YHWWAS GLLEBS-0Z-0C

8F°LST SHITAANS dWYD ¥IWWAS 06L€£86-02-0¢

6G°89 MAN - INIWNJINOF 3DIIA0 000E€FS-00-01

09°89 MAN - INAWAINDA EDIAA0 000E£¥S-00-02

26" G¢E SUSNIIXE WAD NHIO 108£85-02-0¢

L 2L SHITddNS ALIAYS 00TLGS-0T~-0T

PGS 0T SdITddNs 401440 000TPS—-00-0¢

PGS 0T SHITddNS YOIA40 000TFPS-00-01

9921 SHSNIAXE SNOANYTITADSIN 001655-00-0¢

L9°CT SASNAdXE SNOINYTTHDSIK 00T6S6S-00-0T

00" FbE SHILIAILOY /S4dI¥L QTAII dWYD dFWRNAS SLLEBS~0C-0C

€070 SHITAdNS WYdH04d 099£85-0C~0¢

20°S1¢ AONUYNIINIYW SANNOYD Md¥d 000TS5-0T1-01

62°G HONYNIALNIVW SAN{OYWD Hdv¥Yd 000T6G6~-01~0T

G20¢Z/61/80 TysxomTdw ‘S4I¥L dWYD /31004 FOI1440
X pTed 00°0 P2 8L0'F §202/61/80 GZ0c¢/61/80 SHOTAYAS dd¥YD dSYHO TTLS
1L

uoTiNqTIAISTA 1D
931eg 3104 Ag pax33ug uotadraosag #3999 AUl
pozTITUap snie3ls ong Jury Juy AUT o3eQg ong a3eg Aul IOPUBA unN aul

dIvd dNV¥ NEdO HIo"

QIZITYNYAOLNN ANV QIZITYNYNOL HLO™ STg Ied YBRUTIPSW :€Q
§202/61/80 — SZ0Z/61/80 SHLYA 1S0d TysIomTdw :I88n
€/2 :obeg IDOTYLSIA M¥Vd HUNICQHAW ¥0d Td904ad ¥ALSIOAY HOICANI Wd 8Z:ZT $20Z/61/80



SKHYYD0dd NOILVIIDHY - 0¢
HONYNIINIVYWN - 0T
NOILVILSINIWAY - 00

--— ALIAILOY/LddA X9 STIYIOL -—-—

aNAd NOILVAYMOEY - 0¢

NN TYYHINID/AIVI0dI0oD - 0T

00°0 6 9Lz’

00°0 €6°80L

00°0 T€76€2'2

00°0 TP €€9°¢

00°0 ¥E€'16G6°2
26 GE SESNAAXE WAD NIJ0
06" L16°C SAILIAILOY /SdI¥ML aT3Id dWYD JIWHAS
8F " LST SHAITAANS dWYO YIWWNS
€0°0 SHITddNS WYY90dd
86691 SINIAT TYIDHAS
€9°6L ASNHEAXE dIAMAS ANY dIIYM
99721 SESNAAXT SNOANVTITADSIN
0989 MEN ~ INAWAINOT HDIAJO
6 LL $dITddNS FDIAAO
€2 2L SHOIAYES TYALOYHLNOD
62°9F YI¥ddad ¥ INIVW *dIndd ¥2I1440
TL°2L SHITAANS ALAIAYS
6L"8G FONYNAINIVN FTOIHIA
1€°022 FONYNAINIVA SANAOYD Mdvd
ZT'LSE ADIAYES ¥IDONIAYOS
P9 6L ASNAAXE HAMIS ANY dIIYM
SL°9b SASNAIXH SNOANYTITIDSIN
00°€0T H9YLS0d
6G°89 MAN -~ INIWNAINOW dDIJI0
8v " LL SHITddNS FDIJJ0
09°6%2 ONILNIYd
96°891 SHDIAYAS TYALOYILNOD
6279V YIVdAY ? INIVWM “dINdd FDIJI0
06°270°1 SHAA XANYOLLY

00°0 SL°¥Z2'9

00°0 00°0 1sTe3l0l 0

0070 SL°vez'9 1sTe310] 0

®3eg 21s0d Ag pexsijuy
pezITuIp sn3els  e9ng Jury Juy aug 23eq eng @3eQg aufg
dIiv¥d GN¥Y NIJO HIodg
QHIZITYNIOQOLNN ANY QEZITYNINOL HIOY
S202/61/80 - SZ0Z/61/80 SALYA ISOd
£/¢ 1ebeg IOIYLSIA MYVYd HYNIQHEW ¥0d I¥0dd¥ ¥IAISIDIEY TDIOANI

-—-— QNO4d X9 STYLOL ---
108£85-0¢-0¢
SLLEBS-0C-0C
05L€£85—-0¢-0¢
099€8G6~0C-0C
005£86-0¢-0¢
000%LG-00~-0C
001666-00-0¢
000€FPS-00—-0C
000TPS~00-0C
8990€£5-00~02
Zvs0EeS-00-0¢
00TLSG~-0TI-0T
000665-0T1-0T
000TS9S-0T-0T
0GE0ES-0T-0T
000¥LS-00-01
001656-00-0T
000PFS-00-0T
000€PS-00-0T
000TFPS—-00-0T
0000FS-00-0T
8990€5-00~0T
ZhS0ES-00-0T
00T0ES-00-0T

-—= NOILNEI¥LSId I9 Ad SIVIOL ---

SSOUWS 3ITPSID pur $20TOAUI JO 133N

:eng ¥ 0
90 # 6

I SOWSW 3ITPRID JO 4
:S9DTOAUT JO #

UOTINGTIISTA TH
uoT3dTIDsad
IOpUDA

#I°9¥ aul
unN Aug

STA XXed YRUTPSW :dd
TysxIomTdw :a8sn
Wd 8T:ZT1 S20Z/61/80



00°8 SASNAIXE dIdL NOILVYAYDIA 199€85-02-0¢

G202/92/80 TyszomTdu dI¥I IINAY dATTIAONYD ¥0d “8WIdd
X pTed 00°0 00°8 §202/92/80 GZ02/92/80 IILO NVYEL 0zL9
0cCLY

LT°00T SHITIANS dWYD ¥AWWAS 0GLE8G-02-02

gz0c/9¢/80 TysaomTdu SAITAANS dWYD JIWWAS FOd “gWIxd
x pTed 00°0 LT 00T GzZ02/92/80 GZ02/92/80 YANOUM HITINA 6TL9
6T1L9

0G°81€E SHDIAY¥AS TYALIYILNOD 8990£G6~02-02

5202/92/80 Tyszomtdu SNOSSAT SINNAL YIWWAS
X pted 00°0 0G°81€ §202/92/80 §202/92/80 "ONI “SAIMSLIH¥0ods 8TLY
8TLY9

8L°68€ TdNd JOLOW 000€LG-0T-01

§Z02/9¢2/80 TysaomTdw §z/€2/8-p2/L TANI ‘TIIOW NOXXHI
A pTed 0070 8L 68€ GZ02/92/80 GZ02/92/80 MNYE XEM LTLY
LTLY

Z21°0%1 SHOIANAS TYALOYIILNOD 8990£S5-00-02

96°9¢C¢€ SEHDOIA¥AS TYNLOVIINOD 8990€5-00-01T

gz02/92/80 TysaomTdu I HYYMLIOS NOIIWVYLSIDAY LSnonNv
X pTed 00°0 80" L9V §202/92/80 §20¢C/92/80 *ONI  ‘WOD " DFUAR 91L9
9TLS

86°022 NOILVLJOdSNYEL dWYD YAWWNS 08LE8G-0Z2-02

G20C/92/80 Tysaomtdu dWYD YAWWNS ¥0J NOILYILYOdNVYL
X pTed 00°0 86°022C G202/92/80 §202/92/80 *ONI ‘INIANLS LS¥Id STIL9
GTIL9

0070201 ONILANIYH 0028G5-00-0T1

§202/92/80 Tysxomntdu MOLYNIQI00D ONILIEMYYW ATINCL
X pPTed 00°0 00°020°1 GZ02/92/80 §202/92/80 *d¥00 SADIAYAS SMAUANY FTLY
BPTLY

05°2Z61 ONILIANEYH 002855-00-0T

§z0z/92/80 TysazomTdu SYANNYE MONYI dO0Jd/HONOYHI dMOd
X pted 00°0 067261 G202/92/80 §20¢/92/80 SNId SNIINIYd €1L9
€1ILY

0L €1T’C INIWATIOY INIOL/A¥IS ITIOASNOD 00Z0€G-00-0F

§202/92/80 TisaomIdw GZ0Z ‘6T "ID0 -0Z “IdAS ‘LI ATHINOW
A pted 00°0 oL gt12’'e §202/92/80 G202/92/80 ADOTONHOHL 971 ZTLY
Z1LY

uoT3NgIIISTg I9
2l1e(J 31804 Ag psasiug uot3ydTassag $I99 AUl
pozItuap snale3s  ang 1wy juy Aul a93eqg ang 33eg AUT JOPUSA wnN AUl

aIv¥d dNY NIJO HIod

QUZITYNGOOONA ANY QFZITYNGNOL HIOH STQ }xed YeurtpaW :dd
§202/92/80 - SZ0Z/9Z/80 SALYA 1S0d Tyszontdu :I9sn

2/1 :obed LOTYLSIA MYYd HUYNIQHW ¥Od IY0ddY ¥HLSIDAY HADIOANI Wd 00:v0 G20¢/9¢C/80



000 £€°096 SWYYS0Yd NOILVYIEOEY - 0¢

0070 8L 68¢ HONUNILNIVW - 0T

00°0 87 €68°¢ NOILYYLSININAY - 00
—-—— XALIAILOVY/1dd0 X9 SIYIOL —--—-

00°0 0L '€T1C'C aNnd XLITIEVIT - OF

00°0 SYP00T'1 aNQd NOILVYIMDEY - (¢

00°0 vZ2'626°1 aNOd TYYENED/HITE0du0D ~ 071
—-—-— (NNd A9 STIYIOL ---

oL g1z’z INIWHIIOV INIOL/AYES IIASNOD 0020£S-00-0F

86°0¢¢ NOILVIJOdSNYYEL dWYD ¥HWHWAS 08LE8S-0C-0C

LT°001 SUITAdNS dWYD YIWWNS 06L€£8S-02-0¢

89 80 SESNAIXE dI¥L NOILVIdED3dY 199¢€85-0¢2~0¢C

050069 SUDIAYIAS TYNLOVALNOD 8990£5-02-0¢

00°06 SdId WYYO0¥d 00006¥-02-0¢

[AR AN SUOIAYAS TYNLOYALNOD 8990€£5-00-0¢

8L 68¢€ TadNd YOLOW 000€LG-0T-0T

0672121 ONIIINIYH 002855-00-0T1

96°9¢¢ SADTIAYHS TYNLOTILINOD 8990£6-00-0T
-—— NOILA9IYLISId 19 Xd SIYIOL ——-
00°0 6E€°EVT’S SSOWSK 3TPSID pue S3DTOAUT JO 38N
00°0 00°0 :sTR30L 0 rong # 0 PSowsly ITPSID JO #
00°0 6E€°ERT’S tsTe30L 0 eng # 2T 1§80T0AUL JO #

00°06 Sddd WYd50¥d 00006¥%~0C-0C

§202/9¢/80 TYsaomTdu aNNdFd TIVELINSsYd
X ptTed 000 00" 06 §20¢/92/80 G202/92/80 IMSMOONYT ZSYWOL €ZLY
£CLY

89°0F SHSNIIXE dIdd NOILVAEDHEA 199£86~-02~0¢

§202/92/80 Tysaomtdu SINYdIDIINVd ¢ ‘dId¥l I10dY SHMIOW
A pTed 00°0 89° 0% G20¢/92/80 §202/92/80 LOTHLSIA MY¥Yd FTYADNIKWOOTd LS
Z2CLY

00°28T SEDIAYIS TYALOVEINOD 8990£5-02-02

G202/9¢/80 Ty sxomtdus YOOX
X pted 00°0 00281 G202/92/80 S¢02/92/80 HATIINGD "AITIAL 12L9
12L9

uoTINgTIISIA 19
@3eg 2asod Ag peasauyg uotadraoseq #J9Y aul
pezITuIr sn3els  eng Juy Jury AUT 23eq ang 93eg AUl I0pUBA wnpN AUl

dI¥d JdN¥ NHEHJO HLOY
QHZI'TYNANOLNN ANY JHZITYNYINOL HLOd STQ YIed YRUIPSNW :4€d
G¢02/92/80 - S202/92/80 SHI¥A IS0d TysaomtTdW :I19SQ
z/2 :abeg LOTYLSIA MYVYd HYNICHR ¥0d 1¥0ddY¥ ¥ALSIOAY HAOIOANI

Nd 00:%0 S20C/92/80



00°0 9¢Z°L9S SWYYO0Md NOILVYAYOHEHY - 0¢Z

00°0 G8°6¢E8 HJONUYNALNIVW - OT

00°0 96 Iv6’¥p NOILYYLSINIWAY - 00
ww-— XLIAILOY/Lddd A€ SIYIOL —---

00°0 0 8€0°€E aNnd NOILVIYOHd - 02

00°0 £€9°01€¢C ANAd TYEENED/HIY¥04¥0D - 0T
--— dN{}d A9 SIYLOL ---

92" L3S SLNEAE TYIDHE4S 00G£86-02-0¢

8L OLY'T IONVEASNI HITVAH FJIXOTAWI 000F1S9-00-0¢

00° %89 HONYNUINIYWN QTAIATIVE 000€6G6~0T-0T

G87GGT AONUYNILNIYH SANAOYD Mdvd 00016S-0T-0T

8L°0LYV‘T AONVEASNI HITIYHAH JTAOTAWH 000pPTS-00-0T
--— NOIILNGIYWLSIA TD Ad STIVYIOL ---
00°0 L9°8FE’9 SSOWBK 3TP®I) purp S$8D0TOAUT JO 3I8N
00°0 00°0 tSTe304 0 (eng # 0 ISOWSW 3TpaiD JO #
0070 L9°8FE’9 ISTER30L 0 eng # ¢ 1§30T0OAUT JO #

9¢" L9S SINIAT TYIDIAS 005€£85-02-0¢

00" %89 IONUYNILNIVIN dTIIJTTIVE 000£55-0T-01

G8°GGT ADNYNIILNIVIH SANAOYD Uv¥d 000166~01~0T

§z0c/L2/80 TysaomTdu ‘AQIDIENEH ‘STITddNS QTIHIATIVE
A pted 00°0 TT°L07’T GzZ0¢2/L2/80 §z02/L2/80 S d AYESNOD GZLY
SZLS

8L OLY'Z AONYINSNI HILTIVAH HIAQOTdWH 000FPT1S-00-0C

8L 0LY'C ADNTINSNI HITVIAH JFTAOTIWH 000FTS-00-0T

§20¢/L2/80 Tysaomtdu G202 °'9NY HO04d SWNIWAYd "SNI HLIVHH
A pPtTed 00°0 96 ' 1¥6‘F §z202/L2/80 §z20¢2/L2/80 ¥Y'W'd-a‘d vZLY
vZL9

uoTaINqTIISTJ 19
s3eqg 3sod Ag paaajul uot3dTaossag #$Jod aul
pszITUIp sn3els  eng Juwy qury AUJ a3eg eng 23eg AUT IOPUSA wunN Aul

dI¥d dNY¥ NAdO HILOgG

QHEZITYNIAOLND ONY QUEZITYNINOL HLOH STQ YIed YBUTIPSW :€d
S20¢/LZ/80 - G202/LZ/80 SALYA LS04 Tysxomtdw :aasn
/1 1ebeg LOTYLSIA MYYd HUYNIJIW dO0d LdOddE¥ ¥EISIOEY EDIOANI WY €2:01 G202/L2/80



06°¢61T ONILANIYRH 0028585-00-0T

GZ02/80/60 Tysxomtdu SYANNYE LSHd LSHAAYYH/NNA d90I0D
X pted 00°0 067261 §zZ02/80/60 GZ02/80/60 SOTd ODONILNIYd €ELY
£€L9

00°0¢1 SIDIAYEAS TYNLIOYILNOD 8990£6-0C-0¢C

§202/80/60 Tysxomtdut VERNZ JIWNNS
X pted 00°0 00°0¢1T G202/80/60 G20¢/80/60 YZI9D INITOYYH ZELY
CELY

£€°€6 UNOHJHETHAL 0000LS-00-02

ZE'EB ANOHdHTHL 0000LS-00-0T

GZ02/80/60 TysaomTdu 6 LDO NYHLI 0T LddS LENYILINI
X pTed 00°0 G9°981 S20C/80/60 §202/80/60 LSYIRWOD TELS
TELS

87 °6G6¢C SHOIAYYIS IYNLOYILNOD 8990£6-00-0¢

¢T1°966G SHDIAYES "TYNLOYYINOD 8990£5-00-01

§202/80/60 TYsxomTdu ‘91/8°2/8 ¥0d SHEDIYHD HNISSHO0Ed
A pted 00°0 09°168 GZ02/80/60 §z202/80/60 ONISSHED0dd ¥YIV¥d DIILVWOLNY -4ddvy 0€LY
0gLsS

6609 INOHJITAL 0000L5-00~0C

0019 ANOHJdJTEL 0000LS-00-01

§202/80/60 TysIomTdu -GZ/12/L QOI¥dd ‘ADIAYGES FINOHJ
A ptTed 00°0 66°1C1 GZ0Z2/80/60 §202/80/60 dTIGON-1L 62L9
62LY

16 p21'1 ALIDIMIOETH 000TLS-00-0¢

16 7211 ALIDIMIOATH 000TLS-00-0T

GZ02/80/60 TysToMTdU ONIANA gOIddd HOIAYIS 1Y HAINVIVY
S pTed 000 20°6%¥2°C G202/80/60 G20¢/80/60 TONI ADYANIMAN NOILVYTIALSNOD 82L9
8ZL9

8T LL S¥9 TYANIYN 000¢2LS-00-0¢

8T LL SY9 TYINLYN 000CLS-00-01

G20¢/80/60 Tysaomtdu GZ/LZ/8 ONIANA SIADYVYHD AJIAAITIA
X pTed 00°0 9€°PGT §Z0Z/80/60 G¢0¢/80/60 S¥9 ¥ODIN LZLY
LZLS

G6°601 ALIDIYILOATE 000TLS-00-0¢

S6°60T ALIDIYLOITH 000TLS-00-0T

§202/80/60 TyszomTdu LSNONVY NI ONIANA SA0Iddd IDIAYIAS
X pteg 00°0 06°61¢ G20¢/80/60 §202/80/60 ANYdWOD NOSIOE HITYIMNOWRWOD 9¢CLS
9¢CLY

uoTINqTIzsTd 19
®3eg 3sod Ag pesxsijulg uotTydrInssg #3599 aug
pszITUIp sn3iels  eng Juy Jury AU 23eg ang 91eg AUT IOpUBA wunN AUl

alv¥d dNY NIJO HIOY™
AAZITYNYOOLNN ANV dIZITYNINOL HIOod ST ¥Ied YBUTPSW :49d
§202/80/60 - S20Z/80/60 SAIVA 1S0d tyszomtdu :I98n
P/1 cebeg LOTALSIA MYYd HYNIQIW ¥O0d I¥Oddd ¥IALSIOEY FDIOANI

Wd 92:€0 6Z02/80/60



S¥0L6 SNOILOJEdSNI 00GLSS-00-0F

§202/80/60 Tsaomtdu IOUVHOEY/ " I¥ED YHHSINONILXE dY¥Id
X pted 00°0 Sy 0L6 §202/80/60 §202/80/60 ALAAYS ® HYIA HAINVEASSY ZvLo
ZhL9

09°6G6€'2C SHOIAYES TYNLOTIINOD 8990€6-02-0¢

§Z02/80/60 TyszomTdu ALY YIAWRNS
X pTed 00°0 09°6GE’2 G202/80/60 GZ02/80/60 JIYdYY NYMOLOHS SIONITTII vL9
IvL9

66°69 SHITddNS TOOHOSHEAd 00LE£8S-02-0¢

§202/80/60 TysaomTdw JOOHATIHD ATHVYE ¥04d LASAVId
X pTed 00°0 66 69 GZ202/80/60 5202/80/60 YANOHEM FITIWH 0bLS
0bL9

00°G61IS HONUNHINIVA SANNOYS XMYvd 000T4S-0T-0T1

§z02/80/60 TsaomTdu SONINIAAYOS ANOLSAWIT ’‘SNOL 22
A pPted 00°0 00°G1S GZ02/80/60 §202/80/60 “ONI TIOSdOL d5¥dnd 6€LY
6ELS

ob 6L JONUYNILNIVW SANNOYD M¥v¥d 0001S9S-01-0T

GZ0Z/80/60 TyszomTdut SAITddNS SANNOYUD
A pTed 00°0 0v 6L GZ0Z/80/60 G202/80/60 TIYMAYYH d0Y¥ S, NET 8€L9
8ELY

06°¢C1T INOHdATIL 0000L9-00-0¢

06°¢C1T INOHdATHL 0000LS-00-0T

00°00¢ ASNIIXd FOVYATIH 000€15-00-0T

§202/80/60 TysaomTdu "dWIFY ENOHd ANV aNHdILS ATHLNOW
X pted 00°0 00°6Z¢ §202/80/60 S202/80/60 ZNINW NIAILS LELY
LELS

00°001 SHADIAYHIS "TYNLIOYILNOD 8990£6-02-0¢

§20Z/80/60 Tysaomtdu ALY¥Yd dONYd NOILVOVA WYHd
A pTed 00°0 007001 G20¢/80/60 §202/80/60 OTT ‘NOILDANNOD SIMV NOIIVAONNI 9€L9
9€L9

0C" 19 LINIWISHNENIEY SW90dd d0-0D 00€085~02~0¢

§20¢2/80/60 TysaomTdu SALYTIIL
X pted 000 0Z2°19 GZ02/80/60 5202/80/60 LOIYLSIA MY¥d JATTISOH GELY
SELY

08 " Lb¥ SLNAAY I¥IDAdS 005£86-02-02

G202/80/60 TysaomTdu LSAAYYH ‘002 9DNILIA4 ¥0d FADINYIVE
A pPTBd 00°0 0G " LPP G202/80/60 §202/80/60 "ONI ‘Sn 3¥Y S00Z PELY
AR}

UOTINGTIISIQ 19
33eg 3504 Ag paasaudg uot3ydTIosag #3399 aur
pezITuIp snie3s  eng Jwy Juy AUT s3eq ong 23eQg aujl IOpPUDA wnN AUl

dI¥Yd ANY NJJO HLO™

JUZITYNGNOLNN ANV dEZITYNINOL HIOL STQ }Ied YBRUTPaW :d€d
§202/80/60 ~ GZ0Z/80/60 SALYA 1SOd Tyszomtdu :x38n
/2 :obeg IOIYLSIA MY¥d HUYNIQEW ¥0d I190ddd YHLSIDHEY HDIOANI Wd 9C:€0 6202/80/60



G7 0Le

SNOILOHdSNI

006LGS-00~-0F

66769 SHITAdNS TOOHDOSHUd 00LE£85-02-02

0S° LYY SINIAT TYIODAIS 006€£85-02~02

0Z°19 INIWASUNTHIFY SHYYO0dd d0-0D 00£085~02-02Z

09°FE0’E SADIAYIS TYNLOYIINOD 8990€£5-02-0¢

8T LL SY9 TRIANIYN 0002L5-00~0¢C

9p " PET’'T XLIDIYLOATH 000TLG-00~02

287991 ANOHAHTHL 0000LS-00-0C

8 G9L'T SADIAYIS TYNLOYYLNOD 8990£5-00-0¢

0b " %65 HONYNAILNIVW SANNOYD Mdv¥d 000T1SS-0T1-0T

00°21€’1 SADIA¥AS TYIAOLSND 005066-0T-01

8T LL SY9 TYINLYN 000ZL5-00-01T

CR AR AN AR ALIDIELOATH 000TLS-00-0T

287991 HNOHAFTHL 0000LG6-00-01

067261 ONILIIEYH 00Z895-00-0T

217965 SHOIAYAS TYNLOWIINOD 8990£6-00~-0T

00°00€ ASNAAXT FOYITIN 000€16-00~0T
NOILANHdIYLSId T9 Ad SIYLIOL —---
00°0 91" 10£°21 ISOWRK 3TPeID PUBR $8DTOAUI JO 38N
00°0 00°0 :STe30L 0 ISOWSRW ATPe1D JO #
00°0 91°10€2T :sTR3l0L 0 1S9DTOAUL JO #

00°01G6°1 SADIAYGAS TYNIOTHINOD 8990£6-00-0¢

§202/80/60 TysaomTdu HOLYNIQYO0D ONILINIYW ISNONY
X pred 00°0 00°01G6°1 §202/80/60 §202/80/60 *d¥00 SHADIAYHS SMIYANY SHLY
SHLY

00°21€’1 SHOIAMAS TYIAOLSND 00G0SG-0T-0T

G202/80/60 TysxomTdu TYIAOLSAD " LddS
X pTed 00°0 00°21€’1 5202/80/60 G207/80/60  ONIM-INY{ ¥€d °ONI SNISIONYId *ddo FvL9
FvL9

00° GGV SHDIAYES TYNLIVYELNOD 8990£6-02-0¢

S202/80/60 TysIomTdu SIFTIOL FTIVYLYOd *IddAS/ 90V
X pted 000 00°5G¥ §Z02/80/60 §202/80/60 27T ‘S¥T EVLY
€VLY

uoTINATIASTA IO
231eQg 3Ss04d Ag psxsijuy uot3draosag #3399 aur
pszITUuIp sn3e3ls  ong uy Uy AUT a3eg ang 3 AUT IOpUsSA wunN AUl

v/€ :obeg

dI¥d dNY NIJO HIOod
AEZITYNGNOLNA ONY QIZITYNNAOL HIOH
G202/80/60 - GZ0Z/80/60 SIIVWA 1SOd

LOTYLSIA XY¥d HYNIQEW 04 I¥O4dEY ¥ILSIOAY HDIOANI

§TQ JYIBd YRUTPOW :€d
Tysaomtdu :x9sp

Wd 9Z:€0 $¢0¢/80/60



00°0
00°0
00°0

00°0

00°0
00°0

21eQ 3504
pezITuUIp snjels ong auy

v/v :obeg

6 ET9’E
0F7°906°'T
Ly 18L'9

S 0L6

£2°L5879
8y €LY 'Y

Jjuy aufz

LOIYLSIA MY¥d HUYNIQHW YOd I1d0ddY YHLSIDEY HFDIOANI

Ag p®iajud

@3eg ang 2380 AUL

dI¥d dNV NHdO HLOd
JHZITYNINOLNN ONY ddZITYNINOL HLOE

$202/80/60

- 6202/80/60 S3LYA ISOd

SWYYD0dd NOILVAYOdd - 0¢
JONUNULNIYW = OT
NOILYYLSINIWAY - 00

--- XLIAILOY/Ld3d

aNnNd ALITIEVIT - OF

aNNd NOILVHYDHEd - 0¢

aNNd TYYENID/IAITI0d90D - 0T
—-—- dNn4d

UoTINQTIISTA T

uoT3drIosag

Iopusp

A€ S'IYLIOL

Ad STIYLOL

#3924
wny

AUz
AUT

STA ¥Ied YEUTDPSW :dd
Tysaomtdw :ax3s()

Wd 9Z:€0 S20C/80/60



PAYROLL RELATED EXPENSES

Aug-25
TOTAL WAGES
8/8/25 Wages $ 32,831.98
8/22/25 Wages $ 32,447.61

SOCIAL SECURITY (Employer Portion)
MEDICARE (Employer Portion)

IMRF LIABILITY (Employer Portion)

TOTAL

$ 65,279.59
S 4,047.33
S 946.55
$ 5,257.39

S 75,530.87



To: Steven Muenz, Executive Director

From: Maria Piworski, Superintendent of Finance and Human Resources
Date: September 10, 2025

Subj:  Business/Finance Department Report

There is no Revenue and Expenditure report for August as the credit card
transaction revenues deposited into Itasca Bank do not match the reports from
the new MyRec recreation program. | am now trying to work with MyRec
customer service to provide what | need.

| have gotten a good estimate from the Township Assessor as to an EAV increase
projection for FY 2025 which will be collected in FY 2026. Therefore, | am now
starting the tax levy calculations for the levy ordinance. It is my expectation that
we will be approving a tentative tax levy ordinance at the October board meeting.
These numbers are important as they will flow directly into the budget
calculations albeit some adjustments.

The budget process for the FY 2026 budget is underway and the second of our
staff meetings are to be held this week. The board will be presented with what ,
will be a very rough estimate of the FY 2026 budget at the October board ‘
meeting. There are many areas of the budget which will have to be adjusted once
more concrete numbers are provided and once staff gets more input from the
board.

Medinah Park District received tax levy payments in August from DuPage County
in the amount of $28,240.76. This amount was deposited into Itasca Bank. The
district also received $1,796.08 in Replacement Tax from the State if Illinois in
August. This amount went into the district lllinois Funds account.



The district finally received the remaining two hundred thousand from the State
of lllinois for the completed OSLAD project at Thorndale Park. The fund balances
are now significantly healthier.



Parks Maintenance Report

To:  Steven Muenz, Executive Director
From: Vincent DeGrado, Superintendent of Parks/ Dan Touzios Assistant Superintendent of Parks
Date: September 10, 2025

South Thorndale Parking Lot (old Metra lot)

We began to trim all low hanging branches on the south, East and west sides of old Metra
parking lot. Staff has also sprayed herbicide on all cracks in parking lot areas and in
woodchipped areas, eliminating a lot of the poison ivy surrounding the area. We plan on
eventually removing all the parking number signs and making that portion of the Metra lot
different looking in order to distinguish it from the rest. Hopefully with proper signage we can
avoid having Metra riders parking in this lot and have it available just to park patrons.

South Thorndale Main Parking lot

Dan and | have scraped and removed large piles of accumulated slit and debris from the corners
of the parking lot which now allows for proper drainage and now gives a better look. Staff also
moved piles of stockpiled parking blocks back into parking spots and removed old power poles.

Thorndale, Manary, Riha Park

With the fall baseball season in full swing, ... most of our fields are now in use. We started to
prepare the fields for by treating them with herbicide, turning over the sand clay, and adding
sand clay to any low spots. Fields 2,3, and Manary are now complete for this fall season.

Butterfly garden

We have continued our progress on the Thorndale butterfly garden. We are in the process of
removing all the invasive/non-desirable plant species and allowing the promotion of our seeded
flowering species. Staff has also placed large granite stones and crop piles along the limestone
pathways, giving it a nice natural look. Currently there is a walkable limestone trail with many
beautiful wildflowers blooming. We did notice an abundance of butterflies visiting these
flowers while we worked, so it was nice to see it working. We are also acquiring pricing for
concrete slabs and benches.



FRrap StV 1313347

Lites & = vlolL

LATEE % W10l 13nd

AHdWnd

o

PSE LTS HINY
ADTOAMT

a0y Hl st

8s's - v <2
4510k
Vet Shb'S - RuaR Y

G3ADYddY

padiig
aaenhag
AN 1AL
8000000000 - & B8
21PAL10R-1G

% GRERRECE)

§ = WL

sk (NI

/3074
1By

PR

134 ek

SHSBE [IOw QR

L6B9EZ cm>:z&o

uma_mo

7945 J8giny aouenbas

Z JagunN 1) Lyg

0/20Z8F000000000 < # 2348
010N reus>_ﬂ B~ JAN0 ST

AR A 11034

INTMATH #24

gl
iy [ nGay

diNd

x| HTHOY sk A4 wex zqi_ | hx

L699ET HINY
L DT0ANT

P (7700760

BO0E]LOE mJJW\ L7

20

ﬁw_::




bGZ516  Q3A0MdaY

padimg

mzs:: anuanbag
;:z T4

[
,_:_HH:
~L~:\,~um.

EAR I E AL

HGERT e 6 ay

& HfoWnd
INTHATY

GLISLE HinY
G051 N.q‘_.:\,,z
il :

R

£F109

¥a utﬁ_ g¢>axa;<
padLmg

CULRG JRoNN 20usnbag
Lodaguny 1iLg

3 b

OLZNZBE0000N0N0O *# 31T

mu;*; _; NG POJEALLIR-IBUDLEN)

o
o]
.
,

3

INNERS

THTHATY kv
= 19101

$ 9100 1and

RGGTES VAN
Hesat1z TR (Y
ki

+i NTHAIY

wg:p_ﬁ Hie
L3 ADT0ANT

;44 P:jp_:

WY F

_

SE K o UL

:w‘nww cm> JHddy

pading

SN 22UaNhag
LBOUNN 14LUS

0LZ048F000000000 *# 9318
danmden/aseyang nm«n>_wum;;mgaym:u

g6avY

IERET N R 110340

ANTHATY 4
507911

NIUAIY ks
= WY

SUOEL$ IR 1

19/4074d

#dHnd

INTHARY Hox

ANTHAY et

2 HInY
ADT0AN]
ERUGIRL
HEXEARA

L2510
Q202710780
Eplog
e VISYLT
LOOSX KO0
LENAN z;;_d

VO ONIMTHOY N




T4 ON — T4 ON 9|salg - uej jond
8t/8 ‘12/8 YSETS ‘TS $5°9'88°€ <\2—_3TmH v0'9¢ €L V/N auijoey - ue) jany
£z/81e/8 60'¥ZS ‘LS'TCS ¥€°'9 ‘'66°S v/NJing-sT £LE 9€°01 Y/N JBMOW puelspuel
; TH4 ON T4 ON 1BMOW 18pe] qnd
" 1114 ON T4 ON 19MON 0j38
T4.ON T4 ON 40389 ar
1114 ON 1114 ON {uep a8poq) 94 ajoIyaA
= Sny-p or'v9$ S68°LT 8'ElLEY TiHd ON (sng IUIAL) S# BPIYBA
3ny-£ S0'9T1T SPT'LE 8'989L §inr-€ o'v0T  |2T'8T 9 IVEL (as 0Sz-4) €# 9PIYaA
any-g 00'8L% €L9°TT 8LSCT finr-2 SIS |TvoE 18%¢C1T (dwing s 055-4) Z# 21YaA
T4 ON nr-ve (4 R=TASN ko 4 Syvaz (as 0sg-4) T# 3PIYDPA
a1eqg |eioL suojjen | adepn aeq | je101 | suojen | odejiN 21eq g0y | suopen | e3epn # JPIYSIA
laquisidag sndny Ang

Til4 ON AeiN-7 70°61$ I8V v/N 7114 ON a|salq - ued [and

T4 ON Ren-z 88°v$ ST V/N 7114 ON 3uljoED - ued an4

unf-g Sy LT €€'5 /N ABN-ST  06'67S z'6 v/Njidv-0e [og'ees [ozor ] V/N 13MON pueispueln

0g/s ‘e/slrot ‘seor | 9T’ Tolv/N AeN-ST  |67°£95 10°0T ¥/N 1114 ON J9MOW 19pED gD

Ti4-ON ‘ Ren-0g  [18vE £/ V/N Til4 ON 13MON 03jag

T4 ON T4 ON T4 ON 101D af

Ti14 ON Ti4 ON dv-ez fervs [evit Jeeene (uen a8pag) 9# d[21YdA

Ti4 ON AeN-£ 00°99% 9g'8T TLSEY T4 ON {sng IUIN) S# 3IUBA

unf-gg [zots lecez [oteor [Aen-zz Joo'e0Ts 79°87 €769 1dy-p7 [zovTTs [89'TE  [U'6559 {as 05z-3) €4 2PIPA

T4 ON 61/ ‘2T/S | 8T'9T1$ '80°L01S] TE'ZE 'S'1€| S'6E€CT ‘8°vOTLT TH4 ON {dwnq@ QS 055-4) ¢# 2IPIUBA

unf-z1 79°TLS 6'61 61797 T4 ON T4 ON (Qs 05€-d) T# APIURA
aleq [{eloy suopien | adepin aleq _ {e1o}, * suojjen _ adefiinl areq * feiog m sugjjen _ adej # 9POIYBA
3unf Aen judy ;

THION TH4 ON TH4 ON 3[saiQg - ue) jend

THLON 774 ON TH4 ON aujjoen - uej jang

TU4ON THI ON T4 ON 19MON puelspuely

THION TH3 ON TH4 ON JOMOIA 13peD QD

1F-0ON TH4 ON T4 ON JIMOIN 00)ag

TH4 ON T4 ON T4 ON J0jen gr

TH4 ON T4 ON 7114 ON (uea a3poq) 94 3dIYaA

T4 ON - T4 ON TH4 ON (sng uIN) o 3pIYBA

1BN-LT 10'801S$ 10°0€ L9629 |182/2'S/T _oo.mwm ‘00°58$ _mm.mN 1842 _m..ﬁ\bm ‘56485 uer-0z  |oo'86s  [¢0tE 8'899S {as 05z-d) €4 3pYaA

JBIN-TT ‘182665 60°0¢ 9°6861T T4 ON uer-£ 0008 |€5°SC Q€8TT (dwing Qs 055-4) T# BPIYaA

1BIN-8C [4% 74 65'0C 7919 Tild ON uef-0T  |9T°2LS  |vTEe 9809¢ (QS 05€-d) T# 31N
?1eq jelot suojien | aSepy aieq | jeiop | suojen | adepn a1eq jero) [ suojies | afepiy # 3PIYaA

yaue Atenigad Asenuer . ST0Z 1IBDA




3|salq - ue) on4

auljoen - ue) |ond

I3MOW pueispuess

JBMON 18pe] qn)

JaMolA 0089

10189 Qf

{uep 28poq) 9# PIYaA

{sng 1WA} S# 3PIYBA

{Qs 052-4) €# apPIYaA

{dwng @s 055-4) 2# 2P1Y2A

(as 0S€-4) T# 3PIYIA

a1eq

[eloy

suojjen

asejin

aleq

{eloL

suojjen

agein

aleq

{ejoL

suojjen

adejin

# 3PIYdIA

JaquadRg

JBQWAAON

180120

o sror uew




Recreation Department Board Report

September 17%, 2025

Little Scholars

The Preschool and Early Childhood Enrichment programs are off to a great start to the 2025/2026 school
year. Ms. Marissa has been doing an outstanding job leading both programs, especially with our
rebranded 2-year-old program. This program provides the young participants with an early educational
foundation but also supports their social development as they prepare for preschool next year. We also
were able to accommodate one of our students with a Leisure Buddy from NEDSRA, and that
arrangement has been going very well so far. We currently have 12 enrolled in the preschool program,
and 9 enrolled for the early childhood enrichment program. This is compared to 9 and 8 last year
respectively.

Power Through
The school year is in full swing with our before and after school program. We have a great group of staff

this year, and the kids are having a great experience. We were awarded the $1,000 power play grant
again, and will use the fund for enrichment activities such as Innovation Arts Connection and Computer
Explorers.

Fall Youth Soccer
The fall youth soccer season is underway, with first games taking place on September 6. We currently
have a total of 58 players across 5 teams, compared to 61 players last year.

Special Events

Food Truck Rally — The annual Food Truck Rally took place on August 22™ with a good turnout and
weather. Dave’s Holy Smokes BBQ, Doctor Dogs, Toasty Cheese and Kona Ice were in attendance. There
were approximately 100 people who came to the event.

Tween Scene — Our first tween scene of the school year took place on August 29™. This was the most
attended tween scene event to date. There were a total of 66 participants.

Color Run — The color fun run will be taking place on Thursday, September 18" from 6-7pm. Based on
public input staff received after the event last year, the event day was changed from a Friday to a
Thursday, and the start time was changed from 4:30pm start to 6pm. Hopefully that will result in
boosted numbers.

Harvest Fest — Harvest Fest is set to take place on Saturday, September 27'" from 11am-3pm. The event
will look a lot different this year. Most of the features will take place in the main Thorndale Park parking
lot, and be fenced in to allow alcohol on-stie. Beer from Mars brewing and wine from Lynfred Winery will
be available for purchase. Features offered include: Food trucks, climbing wall, dunk tank, petting zoo,
gaming truck, raffle items, and contests.

Rentals
Rental requests have started to pick up again. There are rentals now on most Saturdays and some on
Sundays as well. The Roselle Red Devils will begin their practice schedule in October, with that group



utilizing our gymnasium on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays. We had a successful birthday party on
Saturday, September 6™, and another request came in as a result of that party in October.

Fitness Center

In August, the district had 195 fitness center visits. This is compared to 256 in July of 2025, and 170 in
August of 2024. There are a total of 73 fitness members. This is compared to 68 in July and 57 in August
of 2024.

Open Gym
The district had 215 open gym visits in August of 2025. This is compared to 170 in July of 2025, and 232

in August of 2024. There are a total of 38 open gym memberships, compared to 35 in July of 2025, and
36 in August of 2024.



Safety Coordinator Report

September 17th, 2025

PDRMA SMART Goal: The 2025 SMART Goal for the Medinah Park District will be to evaluate, create,
update, and implement facility operation training for all staff. The safety committee and staff have been
gathering information on our current systems. The goal will be to have a single document that explains
all building operations. This project is set to be completed in October of 2025. Staff will start to meet
weekly on this project to progress in accordance with the project timeline

Fire Extinguisher Inspection: Assurance Fire and Safety Inc. was on-site on Tuesday, August 26" to
perform our annual fire extinguisher inspection.



DIRECTOR’S REPORT
September 17, 2025

A. Notes

1. Commissioners Park Parking: I have made contact with the engineer suggested by the staff at Bloomingdale
Township. He mentioned his busy portion of the year is coming to an end and can be available for a discussion
regarding the potential Commissioners Park parking lot project. I will continue to make sure the line of
communication remains open and that a meeting is set for the future.

2. NEDSRA: The Larry Roesch Golf Classic, which is the main fundraiser annually for NEDSRA, took place
on Thursday, September 11, 2025 at the Glendale Lakes Golf Club.

The regularly scheduled September 3, 2025 Board of Trustees meeting was cancelled due to a number of
trustees not available over the week of Labor Day. This meeting will not be rescheduled and any information on
the agenda will be moved to the next scheduled Board meeting. Among the items up for discussion:

The Addison Park District is currently building a new playground at the Centennial Park site. The NEDSRA
Trustees have been approached by NEDSRA staff with the question of whether NEDSRA should offer funds
toward the construction of the playground.

The indoor track, built in conjunction by the Addison Park District and NEDSRA, is in need of repairs. Staff
will gather quotes on the costs associated with the repairs and bring those to the Trustees for review and
approval.

3. OSLAD/DCEO Grant Updates: The Medinah Park District has received the final $200,000 payment from
the State of Illinois for the 2022 Thorndale Park OSLAD project. This project has now been finalized and
completed.

The DCEO grant is still within the State of Illinois review process, and may be for some time. Based on the
discussions last month, the staff will review options for the completion of the HVAC project in the Walnut
Room of the Connolly Recreation Center. The cost of the project has been placed at approximately $31,000,
with the grant to cover $22,500 of that project. Currently, staff has been able to complete repairs to the current
system and it is working as it should, but will continue to monitor and begin the process of the replacement
project.

4. School District #11 Art Display: Staff has contacted the representative of the Medinah School District #11
regarding the proposed student art display. School District #11 plans to bring roughly 3 to 4 student created
pieces of art to the Connolly Recreation Center sometime in October and will install the items in the lobby.

B. Items for Discussion

OLD BUSINESS

A. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda (If Necessary)

B. Freedom of Information Act Requests

C. METRA Agreement

The Board has requested to discuss the current agreement between METRA and the Medinah Park District.



NEW BUSINESS

OTHER BUSINESS

A. Resolution 25-16: Executive Session Minutes Review:

Coming out of Executive Session, the Medinah Park District Board has completed the semi-annual review of
Executive Session minutes and is prepared to release/hold specific Executive Session minutes and destroy
Executive Session audio recordings that are dated greater than 18 months from the date of September 17, 2025.

Suggested Motion: [ move to approve Resolution 25-16, a resolution approving of Executive Minutes and
determining which minutes to release or hold and which Executive Session audio recordings to destroy.



Annual Financial Report

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2025

Prepared by:
Jerry Barton
Executive Director

Marissa Jimenez
Office Manager

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Administrative Offices
1770 West Centennial Place
Addison, Illinois 60101
nedsra.org




NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

ADDISON, ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page(s)
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Agency Vision and Mission and Principal Officials........ccocvevrvecnnenininiennninennn i
OFgaNiZation CRALt..........ceeereeeeeeeeereeereeeeeeerreseessseseeeeesene e essesenenee e ii
Letter of TransSmittal .........o.covueiriiciicecee et ss et e vieene iii-v
FINANCIAL SECTION
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT .....cciiiiiiiieiienieneeeeneeeeecee e 1-4
GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management’s Discussion and ANalysis.......ccevvvererinieniirnnieneiieneseeeeceesenencae MD&A 1-6
Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net POSIEION ...coociuiiiriiiiiirc e 5
Statement Of ACHVILIES ....ccccvrviririiiniiine e e 6
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet.........co.ociinic s 7
Reconciliation of Fund Balances of Governmental Fund to the
Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position...................... 8
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance....... 9
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Governmental
Activities in the Statement of ACtiVities......cccoeceerincirniineninicnnenene, 10

Notes t0 FINAnCIal STATEIMENTS «.vveeerireeeeeeeeee et et et e e et treeetassseesseets s eeananes 11-30



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

Page(s)
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued)
GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund ...........ccocooiinieiirinenneee, 31
Notes to Required Supplementary Information .........cceoceeniniiiinniceccneee 32
Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Schedule of Employer Contributions ..........ccceeeeeeeeiiniiniiiiseiccrceeeeeee 33
Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability
and Related Ratios ......c.cccrueiriiiieiiirieec ettt 34-35
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE
Schedule of Expenditures - Budget and Actual - General Fund ............ccoooeereenne. 36-37
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Member Agency Contributions - General Fund..........cocccooiiiiiiiiinneiinieeee 38
Due t0 Member AGENCIES......cvueoiiieiiciiie ettt 39
ReEVENUES DY SOULCE ...ttt s e 40
EXpenditures by SOUICE.......coriivivieiicrieirs et 41
Service Demographics - by Partner AZency ......c.coceoevvecnienvceneisse e 42
Service Demographics - by Age Groups and Gender .........cocovvuereenineicnnnrenienenn 43
Program Success Rate .........ccoiieeviiieciinicie e 44
Medical CONItION.......coiiiriiriiiiieieie ettt 45
Inclusion Services - by Partner AGency .....c.oceoeeeeieienieicrieeeeece e enea 46

Historical Service COMPALISON ....c...iiovierirueeieinieesiie e rierese s s a s 47



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



NEDSRA Board of Trustees

Chairman Keith Knautz.........c.cceuu..... Village of Glendale Heights
Vice Chairman Tim HOWe....oviviiiiivviciii i Village of Villa Park
Rob Bond........coocevvvvieeieieieeeeee, Addison Park District
Phyllis Schmidt..................... Bensenville Park District
TBD cooeeieeieieeeee e Butterfield Park District
Maryfran Leno .......ccceeeveveveeeeenne.e. Itasca Park District
Joe McCann .......cccovvvvveiieencenn, Lombard Park District
Steven Muenz......ccoeeeeeeveinnnnnn.. Medinah Park District
Shannon Elsey............ Oakbrook Terrace Park District
Brian Kaspar.....oocoovvvveveieinienen, Village of Schiller Park
Jon Marquardt ......c.cceeuunnnnnnn. Wood Dale Park District

Vision

An agency of excellence, demonstrated by member partners working
cooperatively with the Board, staff, and the community to enhance the
quality of life for each individual.

Mission

To serve as an integral partner with our member park districts and
villages to positively impact individuals with disabilities through diverse
recreation opportunities and community services.

Our Core Values

Service with Compassion ® Excellence and Quality ¢ Integrity ® Commitment ¢ Fun

Administration

EXECULIVE DIr€CtOr ..o cciivricree e s er et e Jerry Barton
SUPErINtENAENT...cociieeree et e r e eae e Maggie Goode
OffiCe MaN@gEr ettt v s e e Marissa Jimenez
Marketing & Communications Manager........coceeeevveerneivenne Carlos Marroquin

HR Generalist

Rosario Lopez




- m,m -
SoIdwAlO jersds SHY [eanynd
EEE YU fayoey swiesboid jinpy ssoy Aaupis U0RGIOPIEM BIOOIN oA
Islleadg Jsiiejoads 08100 eg 1sljeadg yosju- ueas
uoeasay uopiealoay J0jUIPI00T) I I0JEUIPIO0D
uojeassy uoljealnay
$891/BS J00YIS “WRID0I] AeQ JINPpY IB8IUNjoA Yers poddng 'uoisnjouy
nmoyipueds uaey auyy usaljo)
Jjabeuep uoneaiosy JsaBeueyy uonealosy
$9jq0Y BHOJIA
Jojeuipoon) sseqejeq/iegsibay
ubisaq oydess ‘ainyocig
“ ‘Jusiwdojenag-pund ‘buexuepy
zado ouesoy Zouaull® essuep apoos) aibBepy uinbouep sopes
Isljelauss) ¥H JsBeuep soy0 uoyes1osy j0 E.%:&Em%m Jabeue)y suonesunwiwon/Sugesiep
uojieg Auap dT7uswy B yoequaine]
J0joa:( amnoexgy [enjoelju0n ~ 580G ssauisng
m sioypny B Aswopy
Se8snl] jo piecq YHSUIN

spieog BuiweAog) Jsuped jequisyy

sjuamiIsuod vysaaN 000'siz

BOnPIOtEY HonEa ey aeds

ey uoneziuesi | L Vasde




1770 W. Centennial Place, Addison, IL 60101-1076
Phone 630.620.4500 Fax 630.620.4598 www.nedsra.org

August 8, 2025
To: NEDSRA Board of Trustees

State faw requires that every general-purpose local government publish, within six months of the close
of the fiscal year, a complete set of audited financial statements. Attached is the complete set of
Northeast DuPage Special Recreation Association’s (NEDSRA) audited financial statements for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2025.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information in this
report, based on a comprehensive internal control framework established for this purpose. Because the
cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Sikich, LLP, has issued an unmodified opinion on Northeast DuPage Special Recreation Association’s
financial statements for the year ended April 30, 2025. The independent auditor’s report is located at
the front of the Financial Section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) follows the independent auditor’s report. It provides a
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The information in the
MD&A complements this Letter of Transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION

History and Mission

Northeast DuPage Special Recreation Association (NEDSRA) is a cooperative of eight park districts and
three villages in northeast DuPage and west Cook Counties. NEDSRA was formed in 1976 to combine
resources and avoid duplication among the member agencies in the provision of recreation for people
with disabilities. NEDSRA served over 1,800 unique individuals, resulting in 6,892 program registrations
in 2024/25. NEDSRA's primary mission is to serve as an integral partner with our member park districts
and villages to positively impact individuals with disabilities through diverse recreation opportunities
and community services. NEDSRA’s main objective is to meet the unique social and recreational needs of
individuals with disabilities, so they may increase their enjoyment of life and reach their highest level of
independence.

While NEDSRA does not maintain records regarding income or ethnicity, we believe that a considerable
number of our clients fall into the low-income and/or otherwise disadvantaged, high-risk youth
categories, as several of our participants are wards of the State of lllinois and living within our
community in independent living settings. To this end, NEDSRA has developed a Fee Assistance Program,
which addresses our participants' financial needs, and assures our services' availability to all residents
regardless of their financial difficulties. NEDSRA awarded a total fee assistance amount of $21,253 in
2024/25.
- 1il -
Mission to serve as an integral partner with our member park districts and villages to positively impact
individuals with disabilities through diverse recreation opportunities and community services.

Member Partner Communities: Addison ¢ Bensenville ¢ Butterfield ¢ Glendale Heights ¢ Itasca ¢
Lombard & Medinah ¢ Oakbrook Terrace & Schiller Park ¢ Villa Park ¢ Wood Dale



1770 W. Centennial Place, Addison, IL 60101-1076
Phone 630.620.4500 Fax 630.620.4598 www.nedsra.org

Programs and Services Offered

NEDSRA enhances the lives of people with disabilities by providing a multitude of targeted recreation
services. In 2024/25, NEDSRA successfully implemented 624 programs. Services are available for
individuals of all ages, from birth through seniors, whose disabilities may include but are not limited to
autistic spectrum disorders, developmental delays, hard-of-hearing or deaf, learning disabilities,
blind/visual impairments, emotional and behavior disorders, trainable intellectual disabilities, educable
intellectual disabilities, physical disabilities, severe and profound compound disabilities, mental
ilinesses, multi-disabilities and youths at risk. inclusion services and support are offered year-round as
an integral part of NEDSRA’s services for our member partners and their residents enrolling in partner
programs. During 2024/25, NEDSRA served 92 unique individuals through inclusion.

Legal Authority and Governance

NEDSRA and its member partners were authorized to enter into this cooperative agreement by Section
8-10b of the Illinois Park District Code and Section 11-95-14 of the lilinois Municipal Code and the laws
amendatory thereof and supplementary thereto, and by Article Vi Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution
of the State of Illinois. A Board of Trustees governs the Association, and the day-to-day business
operations are managed by an Executive Director as stipulated in its Articles of Agreement and Bylaws.
The Board of Trustees consists of one representative from each member partner, usually an elected
official or the Executive Director. Each member partner has one vote on all matters before the Board.
NEDSRA has no tax levying authority and is dependent on the contributions from the member partners
from their Special Recreation Fund. The formula for said contribution is also delineated in the Articles of
Agreement for the Association as determined by the Board of Trustees and affirmed by the member
partners.

The Board of Trustees establishes all major policies including, but not limited to: budgets, capital outlay,
and long- range/strategic plans. A draft of the annual budget, with the capital plan and any related
studies and plans, is presented to the Board of Trustees in February and March for review. Questions or
concerns are addressed in the final budget and presented for the Board's review and approval in
April/May of each year before the beginning of the new fiscal year. All disbursements are presented to
the Board of Trustees for review and ratification at the regularly scheduled Board meetings. The Board
meets a minimum of eight times per year.

Agency Accomplishments

NEDSRA has completed 48 years of service. NEDSRA has been recognized for achieving high standards of
excellence in providing quality recreation services for people with disabilities. NEDSRA has received the
National Gold Medal Award twice, in 1982 and again in 1996, for Excellence in Parks and Recreation
Services for People with Disabilities - the highest national recognition in the parks and recreation field.
Over the past 5 years the agency and staff have received several awards for programs and
professionalism from the lllinois Park and Recreation Association.

-1V -
Mission to serve as an integral partner with our member park districts and villages to positively impact
individuals with disabilities through diverse recreation opportunities and community services.

Member Partner Communities: Addison ¢ Bensenville ¢ Butterfield ¢ Glendale Heights ¢ itasca ¢
Lombard ¢ Medinah ¢ Oakbrook Terrace ¢ Schiller Park ¢ Villa Park ¢ Wood Dale



1770 W. Centennial Place, Addison, IL 60101-1076
Phone 630.620.4500 Fax 630.620.4598 www.nedsra.org

In 2024/25, NEDSRA completed a total replacement of the roof, added AC to the gym, replaced flooring
in common areas and programs spaces, added graphics to those same areas, transitioned to a new IT
service provider, moved to 3CX VIOP phone system and changed banks.

Recreation related, NEDSRA offered a combined winter/spring brochure for the first time, added a
second TREC location running three days per week, increased the number of inclusion staff and overall
support within Member Partner programs, offered new Special Olympics sports programs, hosted a
family resource fair, made leadership changes in the veteran’s program, and analyzed program revenues
and expenses to establish a baseline and future goals.

Revenue exceeded goals in several areas including charges for services, fund development and
investment income. Staff continued to control expenses while facing the rising costs of goods and
services required to implement programming throughout all service areas.

Conclusion

NEDSRA continually assesses its financial management and operations policies and procedures, making
revisions or additions as the need arises. After any research study by staff, the Board of Trustees must
approve any revisions, recommendations, or additions presented. All updated Policies and Procedures
are distributed to all professional staff members and all members of the Board of Trustees.

NEDSRA would like to express appreciation to the staff whose dedication and efficiency are responsible
for the preparation of this report. The agency would also like to thank the staff of Lauterbach & Amen,
LLP, for their professional support with the business services of NEDSRA and the preparation of this
report.

in everything NEDSRA delivers, the staff strives to adhere to the core values of Service with Compassion,
Excellence and Quality, Integrity, Commitment, and Fun. In all aspects of the agency, the assurance of
quality of service to our constituents in the communities served is a priority. The Board of Trustees and
NEDSRA staff share in the appreciation for this report and the commitment to be responsible and
diligent in their fiscal management of NEDSRA.

Respectfully submitte”d,

Jerry Barton
Executive Director

- V -
Mission to serve as an integral partner with our member park districts and villages to positively impact
individuals with disabilities through diverse recreation opportunities and community services.

Member Partner Communities: Addison ¢ Bensenville ¢ Butterfield ¢ Glendale Heights ¢ Itasca ¢
Lombard ¢ Medinah ¢ Oakbrook Terrace ¢ Schiller Park ¢ Villa Park ¢ Wood Dale



FINANCIAL SECTION



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS
® Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

1415 West Diehl Road. Suite 400
Naperville, 1. 60563

630.566.8400

SIKICH.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Northeast DuPage Special
Recreation Association

Addison, Illinois

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the major
fund of the Northeast DuPage Special Recreation Association (the Association) as of and for the year
ended April 30, 2025, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Association’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities and the major fund of the Northeast
DuPage Special Recreation Association as of April 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial
position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under these standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Association and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

ACCOUNTING TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY




In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Association’s ability to
continue as a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

. Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Association’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information listed in the table
of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Association’s basic financial statements. The supplemental schedule is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The supplemental schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.

The supplemental schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the supplemental schedule is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The 2024 comparative information included on the supplemental schedule are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the 2024 financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the financial statements from which it has been derived.



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory section and supplemental financial information, but does not
include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic
financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form
of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Sbictt OPA4 LLEC

Naperville, Illinois
August 18, 2025



GENERAL PURPOSE EXTERNAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2025

The Northeast DuPage Special Recreation Association provides the following overview and
analysis of the Association’s financial operations and attached financial statements for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2025. The following discussion is presented to enable the readers to more
fully understand the accompanying audited financial statements. The Association is responsible
for the fair and accurate presentation of all financial information as well as the internal controls
and reporting procedures in creating the financial statements.

In management’s opinion, the financial statements herewith reflect all material aspects of the
Association’s operations in an accurate, fair and complete manner. Readers are encouraged to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information furnished in
the Letter of Transmittal, which can be found on pages iii - v of the report, and the Association’s
basic financial statements, which begin on page 5.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and follow the guidelines of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
The major components of the financial statements are the overall Statement of Net Position and
the overall Statement of Activities. The Statement of Net Position shows the amount that total
Association assets and deferred outflows exceed total liabilities and deferred inflows that may be
considered the current value of net worth for the Association. The Statement of Activities reflects
the overall operation of the Association for the past year, excluding revenues from taxes from
members, interest and miscellaneous items. This demonstrates how effectively the Association
operated on a business level model. In simple terms, it shows how the Association would fare as
a business, without the support of member agency contributions and investment earnings.

The Association’s total assets and deferred outflows exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows
by $1,871,694 and $1,563,021 at April 30, 2025 and April 30, 2024, respectively. The Association
had total capital assets net of depreciation of $838,838 and $401,852 at April 30, 2025 and
April 30, 2024, respectively.

-MD&A 1 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30,2025

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Association’s basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains supplementary financial information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Association’s finances, in a matter similar
to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Association’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Association is
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Association that are
principally supported by intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). All the Association’s activities are considered governmental
activities.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 5 and 6 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Association, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The fund financial statements provide
reporting for the Association’s operations at a fund level. A fund is a group of related accounts
established for specific purpose to maintain the control of the resources for that purpose. The
Association utilizes fund accounting that reports operations categorized by each of their purposes.
There are three types of funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. The Association has one
governmental fund, which is the General Fund.

-MD&A 2 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2025

Overview of the Financial Statements — Continued

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
Association’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Association adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement for these funds has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate

compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 7 through 10 of this
report.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 11 through 29 of this report.

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents a detailed schedule of expenditures in the General Fund — Budget and Actual.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the Association, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows by $1,871,694 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

-MD&A 3 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

April 30, 2025

Government-Wide Financial Analysis — Continued

2025 2024

Current and Other Assets $ 2,386,457 § 2,531,963
Capital Assets 838,838 401,852

Total Assets 3,225,295 2,933,815
Deferred Outflows of Resources 702,820 273,799
Current Liabilities 1,087,614 812,282
Noncurrent Liabilities 512,867 229,796

Total Liabilities 1,600,481 1,042,078
Deferred Inflows of Resources 455,940 602,515
Net. Position

Investment in Capital Assets 838,838 401,852

Restricted 25,815 27,242

Unrestricted 1,007,041 1,133,927
Total Net Position 1,871,694 1,563,021

The largest components of the assets are cash, cash equivalents and investments and receivables
of $2,386,457 and $2,531,963 at April 30, 2025 and April 30, 2024, respectively) and capital assets
$838,838 and $401,852 at April 30, 2025 and April 30, 2024, respectively), which include the
furniture and equipment, and vehicles. These items are depreciated over their useful lives.

The largest component of the total liabilities is due to the implementation of GASB Statement No.
68. GASB Statement No. 68 requires governments to include the IMRF net pension liability on
the financial statements. The IMRF — Net Pension Liability represents $435,834 of the total
liabilities of $1,600,481 as of April 30, 2025.

NEDSRA maintains and segregates certain funds for the member partners on an ongoing basis
until such time as they receive a letter of direction from the member partner requesting the
distribution of funds for the purpose, and as stipulated in their letter of direction/request. The
distributions of these funds are brought before the Board of Trustees for approval at a public
regularly scheduled Board of Trustees meeting.

-MD&A 4 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30, 2025

Government-Wide Financial Analysis — Continued

The statement of activities shows the overall expenses and revenues for services the Association
provided. Revenues are classified as either program revenues, which consist of charges for services
and grants and contributions, or general revenues, which are primarily made up of contributions
of tax assessments from its members, unrestricted investment earnings and miscellaneous items.
The change in net position is total revenues less expenses. A decrease in net position does not
necessarily mean poor performance, as planned usage of cash on hand or fund reserves will also
be reflected here.

2025 2024
Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $ 547,077 $ 400,829
Fundraising/Grants and Contributions 380,311 361,744
Capital Grants/Contributions - -
General Revenues
Contributions from Member Districts -
Tax Assessments 1,981,794 1,916,630
Other 81,182 31,020
Total Revenues 2,990,364 2,710,223
Expenses
Total Expenses 2,681,691 2,976,321
Change in Net Position 308,673 (266,098)
Net Position - Beginning 1,563,021 1,829,119
Net Position - Ending 1,871,694 1,563,021

-MD&AS -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
April 30,2025

Financial Analysis

The financial analysis of the operations by fund including a comparison of actual to budget
operations, allows for a greater understanding of the overall Association operations. The
Association adheres to fund accounting to ensure and comply with all finance related legal
requirements for special recreation associations. The Association’s activity was all recorded within
a General Fund. The fund financial statements exclude depreciation expense, which is also not a
budgeted item.

The General Fund: The General Fund actual revenues were less than expenditures by $420,838.
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets: The Association’s investment in capital assets as of April 30, 2025 and April 30,

2024 amounts to $838,838 and $401,852 respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes furniture and equipment, and vehicles.

2025 2024

Construction in Progress $ - $ 3,829
Vehicles 505,179 505,179
Furniture and Equipment 776,116 738,534
Building Improvements 511,647 -

Total Cost 1,792,942 1,247,542

Less Accumulated Depreciation (954,104) (845,690)

Net Capital Assets 838,838 401,852

Additional information on the Association’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 on page 19 of
this report.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial operations of the
Association. Questions concerning any of the information in this report, or requests for additional

information should be sent to the attention of the Executive Director, NEDSRA, 1770 W.
Centennial Place Addison, IL 60101-1076.

-MD&A 6 -



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments
Receivables - net of allowance
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Prepaids

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Depreciable
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items

Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Unearned income
Due to member agencies
ADA liability
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable
IMRF - net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension items - IMRF

Total deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 2,112,688
22,963
110,098
140,708

2,386,457

1,792,942
(954,104)

838,838

3,225,295

702,820
702,820

3,928,115

314,512
67,105
133,922
572,075
1,087,614

77,033
435,834

512,867

1,600,481

455,940
455,940

2,056,421

838,838
25,815

1,007,041

3 1871694



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025

Program Revenues Net (Expense)
Charges Operating Capital Revenue and
for Grants and Grants and Change in
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Position
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
Culture and recreation $ 2681691 § 547077  § 380311 § - $ (1,754,303)
General Revenues
Member agency contributions 1,981,794
Investment income 67,003
Miscellaneous 14,179
Total 2,062,976
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 308,673
NET POSITION, MAY 1 1,563,021
NET POSITION, APRIL 30 § 1,871,694

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

ADDISON, ILLINOIS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
April 30, 2025
General
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,112,688
Receivables - net of allowance
Accounts 22,963
Intergovernmental 110,098
Prepaids 140,708
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2386457
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 314512
Accrued payroll 67,105
Unearned revenue 133,922
Due to member agencies
ADA liability 572,075
Total liabilities 1,087,614
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 140,708
Restricted 25,815
Assigned 286,647
Unassigned 845,673
Total fund balance 1,298,843
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ 2386457




NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

ADDISON, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30, 2025

FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUND

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental
funds

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption
changes, net differences between projected and actual earnings
and contributions subsequent to the measurement date for net
pension liabilities are recognized as deferred outflows on the
statement of net position

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption
changes, net differences between projected and actual earnings
recognized as deferred inflows of resources in the statement of
net position

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability for the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

1,298,843

838,838

702,820

(455,940)

(77,033)

$

(435,834)

1,871,694




NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025

General
REVENUES
Member agency contributions $ 1,981,794
Charges for services 547,077
Fund development 135,911
Intergovernmental 244,400
Investment income 67,003
Miscellaneous 14,179
Total revenues 2,990,364
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 3,411,202
Total expenditures 3,411,202
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (420,838)
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 1,719,681
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,298,843

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND $ (420,838)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however,
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense
Capital outlays 558,260
Depreciation expense (121,274)

The change in the net pension liability and related deferred outflows and
inflows for Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund is shown as an increase
of pension expense on the statement of activities 321,947

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds
Change in compensated absences payable (29,422)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 308,673

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-10 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Northeast DuPage Special Recreation Association (the
Association) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter
referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)). The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
Association’s accounting policies are described below.

a.

Reporting Entity

The Association was formed in 1976 by 12 governmental agencies for the purpose of
developing specialized recreation and education activities for children and adults who
are physically, mentally or emotionally disabled and to share the expense for such
programs and services on a cooperative basis. Principal operations began with the
1977 summer activities.

Each member governmental agency (Member Partner) is party to a cooperative
agreement/contract herein after referred to as “the Articles of Agreement.” These
entities are required to contribute the funds collected based on the extensions of the
rate by the DuPage County Assessor’s Office. These funds are to be forwarded to the
Association on a timely basis upon receipt and distribution by the member entities of
these funds from DuPage County. Park districts and municipalities contribute to the
Association voluntarily, as there are no statutes requiring their specific participation.

Park districts are given their authority to act through the enabling legislation stipulated
in Chapter 105: 8-10-1, 105: 8-10-2 and 105: 5-8 of the Illinois Revised Statutes as
amended, 1983 (often referred to as the “Park District Code”). Municipalities are given
their authority to act through the enabling legislation stipulated in
Chapter 24: 11-95-13 and 11-95-14 of the Illinois Revised Statutes as amended, 1983
(often referred to as the “Municipal Code™).

There are presently eight park districts and three municipalities as members in good
standing of the Association. The Board of Trustees is comprised of one representative
from each member entity, selected and duly appointed by the respective member
entity. The Board of Trustees is notified in writing of any changes that take place in
the representation of any member entity.

-11 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a.

Reporting Entity (Continued)

The Board of Trustees amended and restated its Articles of Agreement on
September 13, 2006. Amendments to the Association’s Articles of Agreement and
Bylaws were introduced for the Board of Trustees’ consideration that would address
member unity and financial stabilization. The Articles of Agreement were
subsequently approved by all of the member partners’ governing boards.

The funding formula was updated on May 8, 2013. For fiscal year 2014, if a Member
Partner’s 2012 EAV is greater than its 2011 EAV, then the amount of the Member
Partner’s annual contribution for the fiscal year will increase from the Member
Partner’s MPCB by a percentage equal to the percentage increase in the CPI-U for the
12-month period ending December 31, 2012 - i.e., by 1.70%. If a Member Partner’s
2012 EAV is equal to or less than its 2011 EAV, then the amount of the Member
Partner’s annual contribution for the fiscal year will be equal to and will not increase
from the Member Partner’s MPCB.

For each fiscal year following 2014, if a Member Partner’s EAV for the calendar year
in which the fiscal year begins (latest EAV) increases from the Member Partner’s EAV
for the previous calendar year (previous EAV), then the Member Partner’s annual
contribution will increase from the amount of its annual contribution for the previous
fiscal year by a percentage equal to the percentage increase in the CPI-U for the
12-month period ending on the December 31 which preceded the fiscal year for which
the Member Partners’ annual contributions are being computed. If a Member Partner’s
latest EAV is equal to or less than its previous EAV, then the Member Partner’s annual
contribution for the fiscal year for which Member Partners’ annual contributions are
being computed will be equal to and will not increase from the Member Partner’s
annual contribution for the preceding fiscal year.

In determining the financial reporting entity, the Association complies with the
provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Omnibus - an
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34 and includes all component units
that have a significant operational or financial relationship with the Association. The
Association is considered a jointly governed organization of the members pursuant to
GASB Statement No. 14. Based upon the criteria set forth in the GASB Statements
No. 14 and 61, there are no component units included in the reporting entity.

-12 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b.

Fund Accounting

The Association uses funds to report on its financial position and the changes in
financial position. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and
to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government
functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set
of accounts. Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary. The Association has no proprietary or fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for all the Association’s general activities,
including the acquisition or construction of capital assets and the servicing of general
long-term debt. The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the
Association,

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the activities of the Association.
The effect of material interfund activity, if any, has been eliminated from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, if
any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and
(2) grants and shared revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental fund.
The Association reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the Association’s primary operating fund. It accounts for
all financial resources of the Association.

-13-



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Association considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a fund liability is incurred.
However, debt service expenditures, if any, are recorded only when payment is due.

Investment income, operating fees and member services associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and are recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the Association.

The Association reports unearned/unavailable revenue on its financial statements.
Unavailable revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the
measurable and available or earned criteria for recognition in the current period.
Unearned revenues also arise when resources are received by the Association before
it has a legal claim to them or prior to the provision of services, as when grant monies
are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods,
when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Association has a legal
claim to the resources, the liability and/or deferred inflows of resources for
unavailable/unearned revenue is removed from the financial statements and revenue
is recognized.

Investments
Investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at amortized

cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when purchased are reported
at fair value. Non-negotiable certificates of deposit, if any, are reported at cost.

-14 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

€.

Investments (Continued)

The Association categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by GAAP. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure
the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3
inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The Association does not have any
investments at fair value at April 30, 2025.

Prepaid Expenses/Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of this
report are recorded as prepaid expenses/items using the consumption method.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Capital assets,
which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., parking lots
and similar items), if any, are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Association
as assets with an initial, individual cost in excess of $2,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value or service
capacity of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the

following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Furniture and equipment 3-7
Vehicles 5

-15-



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h.

Compensated Absences

The Association implemented GASB Statement 101, Compensated Absences, for
fiscal year ended April 30, 2025. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that
is due to employees who have retired or terminated by the end of the year is reported
as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. Vested
or accumulated vacation and sick leave of governmental activities is recorded as an
expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. The entire
balance of vacation leave is recognized as a liability at year end. A liability is
recognized for the portion of accumulating sick leave benefits that is estimated to be
more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through
noncash means.

As a result of the implementation of GASB Statement 101, Compensated Absences,
beginning net position was not required to be restated as the amounts were determined
to be immaterial.

Due to Member Agencies

The funds are amounts due to member agencies and are to be paid back to the member
agencies on a project basis for ADA upon request from the member agency.

Fund Balance/Net Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds can report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are either not spendable in form or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for amounts
constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specific purpose or
externally imposed by outside entities. The restricted fund balances for vehicle
replacement is from enabling legislation adopted by the Association. Committed fund
balance is constrained by formal actions of the Association’s Board of Trustees, which
is considered the Association’s highest level of decision-making authority. Formal
actions include resolutions approved by the Board of Trustees. Assigned fund balance
represents amounts constrained by the Association’s intent to use them for a specific
purpose. The authority to assign fund balance has been delegated to the Board of
Trustees; however, this has not been authorized through a formal policy. Any residual
General Fund balance is reported as unassigned.

Since no fund balance policy is in place, the Association’s flow of funds assumption
defaults to that described in GASB Statement No. 54. This prescribes that the funds
with the highest level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds
are available for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different
levels of unrestricted funds are available for spending, the Association considers
committed funds to be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds.

-16 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
J- Fund Balance/Net Position (Continued)

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position are legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net investment in capital assets
represents the book value of capital assets less any long-term debt principal
outstanding issued to construct capital assets.

k. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

l. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets; deferred outflows of resources, liabilities; deferred inflows of resources; and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

[llinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and the Association’s investment policy authorize the
Association to deposits/invest in commercial banks, savings and loan institutions,
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, obligations of states and their political
subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the
three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services and The Illinois Funds.

It is the policy of the Association to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow
demands of the Association and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the
investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the overall
portfolio. The primary objective of the policy is safety (preservation of capital and protection
of investment principal), liquidity and yield.

-17 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Illinois Public Treasurers’ Investment Pool, known as The Illinois Funds, operates as a
qualified external investment pool in accordance with the criteria established in GASB
Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, and thus,
reports all investments at amortized cost rather than fair value. The investment in The Illinois
Funds by participants is also reported at amortized cost. The Illinois Funds does not have
any limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals. The Illinois Treasurer’s Office
issues a separate financial report for The Illinois Funds which may be obtained by contacting
the Administrative Office at Illinois Business Center, 400 West Monroe Street, Suite 401,
Springfield, Illinois 62704.

a.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event
of bank failure, the Association’s deposits may not be returned to it. The Association’s
investment policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of
federal depository insurance with the collateral held by an agent of the Association in
the Association’s name. Total funds exceeding the deposit insurance limits must have
collateral provided as 110% of the fair market value of the net amount of the
Association’s funds on deposit at each financial institution. At April 30, 2025, all of
the Association’s deposits were insured and collateralized.

Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the market
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Association
limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity.
The Association’s investment policy limits its exposure to interest rate risk by
requiring that the investment portfolio remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring
the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated
demands.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. State law limits investments in commercial paper, corporate
bonds and mutual funds to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations. The Association’s investment policy does not further
limit investment choices besides those authorized under state statute. At year end, the
Association’s investment in The Illinois Funds was rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the

Association’s investment in a single issuer. The Association’s investment policy does
not mitigate concentration risk.

-18 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
b.  Investments (Continued)

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Association will not be able to recover the value of
its investments that are in possession of an outside party. The Association’s investment
policy does not mitigate custodial credit risk for investments. The Association’s
investment in The Illinois Funds is not subject to custodial credit risk.

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2025 was as follows:

Balances Balances
May 1 Increases Decreases April 30
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress $ 3,829 § - $ 3,829 % -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,829 - 3,829 -
Capital assets being depreciated
Vehicles 505,179 - - 505,179
Furniture and equipment 738,534 50,442 12,860 776,116
Building improvements - 511,647 - 511,647
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,243,713 562,089 12,860 1,792,942
Less accumulated depreciation for
Vehicles 284,671 59,012 - 343,683
Furniture and equipment 561,019 36,680 12,860 584,839
Building improvements - 25,582 - 25,582
Total accumulated depreciation 845,690 121,274 12,860 954,104
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 398,023 440,815 - 838,838
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 401,852 § 440,815 § 3,829 $ 838,838

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the primary government as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Culture and recreation

-19-



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS ‘
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. LONG-TERM DEBT

During the year, the following changes occurred in governmental long-term liabilities:

Beginning Ending Current

Balance Additions  Retirements Balance Portion
Compensated absences* $§ 47,611 $§ 29422 § - $ 77033 § -
Net pension liability 182,185 253,649 - 435,834 -
TOTAL $ 229,796 § 283,071 § - $ 512867 §$ -

*The amount displayed as additions or reductions represents the net change in the liability.
S.  FUND BALANCE

The following is a description of fund balance restrictions, commitments and assignments
as of April 30, 2025:

Restricted for Vehicle Replacement

The Board of Trustees implemented a policy establishing this reserve in 1977. In 1989, the
policy was revised to allow for specific dollar amounts to be appropriated each year for
replacement of each vehicle owned by the Association. In January of 1995, the policy was
revised again to suggest these funds be generated by fund development and other cost saving
methods. All efforts would be made to maintain the vehicle replacement schedule as adopted
in 1989 and re-affirmed November 1, 2000. This schedule is reviewed and approved each
year as part of the annual budget process.

The Association currently owns seven vehicles. Funds may be generated through local fund
development initiatives. Specific service groups or grants may elect to pledge specific dollar
amounts toward the replacement costs of these vehicles. At April 30, 2025, there were no
fund balance restrictions for vehicle replacement.

Restricted for Special Olympics Boosters Club

The Association’s Special Olympic Boosters Club has been in existence for eight years and
has become an important aspect of the Association’s service delivery system. The club
members are parents and friends who are supportive of the children and adults who
participate in the Association’s Special Olympic programs and activities. They function as
a support group, an advisory group and a fund raising group that allows our Special Olympic
athletes to engage in more tournaments and competitions including attending state and
regional games. This year they were successful in raising $6,691 in direct support of these
outstanding athletes.

-20 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.  FUND BALANCE (Continued)
Restricted for Jeena Greenwalt Scholarships
The Jeena Greenwalt Spirit and Scholarship Fund was set up in memory of Jeena Greenwalt,
a former NEDSRA employee and the Executive Director for three years. This award is given
each year to a participant that most exemplifies and demonstrates Jeena’s spirit, enthusiasm,
lover for life, courage and positive impact.
Restricted for Hispanic Scholarships
Through collaboration with the Hispanic Parent Focus Group, NEDSRA raises funds for the
Hispanic Scholarship. This scholarship will be awarded to resident Hispanic families
attending NEDSRA programming.
Fund Balance Classifications

The following is a schedule of fund balance restrictions as of the date of this report:

Beginning Ending
Balances  Revenues  Expenses  Balances

General Fund

Restricted
Special Olympics Booster Club ~ $ 13,018 $ 6,691 § 92280 $ 10,429
Jeena Greenwalt Scholarship 12,811 2,000 838 13,973
Hispanic Scholarship 1,413 - - 1,413
TOTAL $ 27242 $ 8,691 $ 10,118 $ 25815

221 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. FUND BALANCE (Continued)
Fund Balance Classifications (Continued)

The following is a schedule of fund balance classifications for the governmental fund as of
April 30, 2025:

General
Fund balances
Nonspendable
Prepaids § 140,708
Restricted
Special Olympics 4,658
Jeena Greenwalt Scholarship 13,973
Hispanic Scholarship 1,413
Assigned
Capital Projects 286,647
Unassigned 851,444
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 1,298,843

6. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Association is exposed to various risks related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and net income losses.
Since 1986, the Association has been a member of the Park District Risk Management
Agency (PDRMA), a joint risk management pool of park and forest preserve districts and
special recreation associations through which property, general liability, automobile
liability, crime, boiler and machinery, public officials’ employment practices liability and
workers’ compensation coverage is provided in excess of specified limits for the members,
acting as a single insurable unit. Losses exceeding the per occurrence self-insured and
reinsurance limit would be the responsibility of the Association.

As a member of PDRMA'’s Property/Casualty Program, the Association is represented on
the Property/Liability/Workers’ Compensation Program Council and the Membership
Assembly and is entitled to one vote on each. The relationship between the Association and
PDRMA is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by resolution of the
Association’s governing body. The Association is contractually obligated to make all annual
and supplementary contributions to PDRMA, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate
with PDRMA, its claim administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement,
and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by PDRMA.

-2



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of PDRMA attributable to a
membership year which they were a member.

PDRMA is responsible for administering the self-insurance program and purchasing excess
insurance according to the direction of the Program Council. PDRMA also provides its
members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims
and establishes reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be
followed by the members.

On February 1, 1986, the Association became a member of the PDRMA Health Program, a
health insurance pool of park districts, special recreation associations and public service
organizations through which medical, vision, dental, life and prescription drug coverages are
provided in excess of specified limits for the members, acting as a single insurable unit. The
pool purchases excess insurance covering single claims over $250,000. Until January 1,
2001, the PDRMA Health Program was a separate legal entity formerly known as the Illinois
Park Employees Health Network (JPEHN).

Members can choose to provide any combination of coverages available to their employees
and pay premiums accordingly.

As a member of the PDRMA Health Program, the Association is represented on the Health
Program Council as well as the Membership Assembly and is entitled to one vote on each.
The relationship between the member agency and PDRMA Health Program is governed by
a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by a resolution of each member’s governing
body. Members are contractually obligated to make all monthly payments to the PDRMA
Health Program and to fund any deficit of the PDRMA Health Program upon dissolution of
the pool. They will share in any surplus of the pool based on a decision by the Health
Program Council.

A large percentage of PDRMA’s liabilities are reserves for losses and loss adjustment
expenses, which are based on an actuarial estimate of the ultimate losses incurred.

7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Grants
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if

any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this
time; although, the Association expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

-23 .



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8.  RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

The Association’s defined benefit pension plan, Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF),
provides retirement, disability, annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. IMRF is an agent multiple-employer pension plan that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in
[llinois. The Illinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan that can only
be amended by the Illinois General Assembly. IMRF issues a publicly available report that
includes financial statements and supplementary information for the plan as a whole but not
by individual employer. That report may be obtained by writing to the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523 or at
www.imrf.org.

Plan Administration

All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard
must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members.

The plan is accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions are recognized when earned in
the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are recognized as an expense
and liability when due and payable.

Plan Membership
At December 31, 2024, IMRF membership consisted of:

Inactive employees or their beneficiaries currently receiving

benefits 8
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 14
Active employees 18
TOTAL 40
Benefits Provided

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011 are
eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of
service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full
benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for
each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. Employees
hired on or after January 1, 2011 are eligible for Tier 2 benefits.

-4 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8.

RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating members
who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with ten years of credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount
equal to 12/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15
years, and 2% for each year thereafter. IMRF also provides death and disability benefits.
These benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute.

Contributions

Participating members are required to contribute 4.50% of their annual covered salary to
IMREF. The Association is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund
IMRF as specified by statute. The employer contribution rate for the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2025 was 8.97% of covered payroll.

Actuarial Assumptions

The Association’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2024 and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation performed as of the same date using the following actuarial methods and
assumptions.

Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2024
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal
Assumptions
Price inflation 2.25%
Salary increases 2.85%to 13.75%
Interest rate 7.25%
Cost of living adjustments 3.00%
Asset valuation method Fair value

For non-disabled retirees, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income,
General, Retiree, Male (adjusted 108.0%) and Female (adjusted 106.4%) tables, and future
mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2021. For disabled retirees, the Pub-2010,
Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General, Disabled Retiree, Male and Female
(both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements projected using scale MP-2021.
For active members, the Pub-2010, Amount-Weighted, below-median income, General,
Employee, Male and Female (both unadjusted) tables, and future mortality improvements
projected using scale MP-2021.

225 .



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

[llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be
made at the current contribution rate and that the Association’s contributions will be made
at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the Association’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation
percentage and adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following

table:
Portfolio Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Percentage Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 33.50% 4.35%
International Equity 18.00% 5.40%
Fixed Income 24.50% 5.20%
Real Estate 10.50% 6.40%
Alternative Investments 12.50% 4.85 t0 6.25%
Cash Equivalents 1.00% 3.60%
TOTAL 100.00%

-26-



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Hlinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

(a) (b) (2) - (b)
Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension

Liability Net Position Liability

BALANCES AT
JANUARY 1, 2024 $ 3,693,661 $ 3,511,476 $ 182,185
Changes for the period
Service cost 77,334 - 77,334
Interest 265,540 - 265,540
Difference between expected
and actual experience 645,523 - 645,523
Changes in assumptions - - -
Employer contributions - 102,174 (102,174)
Employee contributions - 43,873 (43,873)
Net investment income - 259,305 (259,305)
Benefit payments and refunds (139,424) (139,424) -
Other (net transfer) - 329,396 (329,396)
Net changes 848,973 595,324 253,649
BALANCES AT
DECEMBER 31, 2024 $ 4,542,634 $ 4,106,800 § 435834

-27-



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended April 30, 2025, the Association recognized pension expense/(income)of
$(233,339). At April, 30, 2025, the Association reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to IMRF from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of  Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 564211 § 448,511
Changes in assumption 2,725 7,429
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 118,785 -
Contributions after the measurement date 17,099 -
TOTAL $ 702,820 $ 455,940

$17,099 reported as deferred outflows of resources result from the Association contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ending April 30, 2026. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to IMRF will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending
April 30,
2026 $ 61,343
2027 68,677
2028 (26,009)
2029 63,967
2030 61,803
Thereafter -
TOTAL $ 229,781

-28 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8.

RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate. The table below presents the net pension liability of the Association calculated using
the discount rate of 7.25% as well as what the Association’s net pension liability would be
if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.25%) or
1 percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
Net pension liability $ 921,068 $ 435834 §$ 96,019

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
a.  Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Association provides other
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a
single-employer defined benefit plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Association and can be
amended by the Association through its personnel manual. The plan is not accounted
for as a trust, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the plan.
The plan does not issue a separate report. The Association’s total OPEB liability as of
April 30, 2025 is immaterial and, therefore, not recorded by the Association.

The following are the summary results from the Association’s actuarial valuation
performed at September 30, 2024:

Liabilities $ 26,663
Deferred inflows of resources 21,858
Deferred outflows of resources 11,105
Total OPEB expense 1,554

=29 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

b.

Benefits Provided

The Association provides OPEB and life insurance benefits to its retirees. To be
eligible for benefits, an employee must qualify for retirement under the Association’s
retirement plan. The retirees pay 100% of the average employer group cost.
Membership

At September 30, 2024, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits -

Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet
receiving them -

Active employees 14
TOTAL 14

-30 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025

Original
and Final
Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES
Member agency contributions $ 1981,794 $ 1,981,794 $ -
Charges for services 521,315 547,077 25,762
Fund development 123,750 135,911 12,161
Intergovernmental 324,400 244,400 (80,000)
Investment income 10,000 67,003 57,003
Miscellaneous 11,000 14,179 3,179
Total revenues 2,972,259 2,990,364 18,105
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 3,537,501 3,411,202 (126,299)
Total expenditures 3,537,501 3,411,202 (126,299)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (565,242 (420,838) % 144,404
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 1,719,681
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 $ 1,298,843

(See independent auditor's report.)



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30, 2025

BUDGETS
The Association’s Board of Trustees and staff have participated in several thorough processes that
resulted in a very comprehensive budget, maintaining financial stability and strength, while
addressing many diverse issues.
The process includes, but is not limited to the following:

a.  Approval of Mission and Vision Statement.

b.  Review and approve Strategic Directions and Initiatives.

c.  Direct staff to draft a budget based on Initiatives and Financial Stability Plan.

d.  Study alternatives for objectives and funding.

€.  Review and approve funding alternatives and restructuring of specific fund accounts,
financial practices and personnel.

f. Draft a balanced budget for review by the committee structure and presentation to the
Board of Trustees.

The budget process requires that the Association continue to seek a variety of sources of funding,
both locally and at the state level. In formulating the budget, the Association is guided by the
Mission and Vision and Values, Strategic Directions and Key Initiatives.
The budget process follows the following calendar:

October  Staff begins developing budget projections.

March Review of proposed budget at March Board of Trustees meeting.

April Budget is presented to Board of Trustees forvapproval.
Budgets are adopted on the cash basis, which is not materially different than GAAP. All budget

authority lapses at the end of the year. There were no budget amendments made during the current
year. The level of budgetary control is at the fund level.

-32-



- mm -
(-podai s,Joupne juspusdopur 235)

“Ajjenuue papunodwod g,6/ 7 JO Sasealdul j1jeusq juswaidnsod pue Ajjenuue papunodwod o467 €1 0 946/ 7 Jo uondinsse sasealour AIe[es pajoafoid ‘Ajjenuue 9467/ 18 UINJA1 JO 3111 JUSLIISIAU] Ue aJom suondumsse
[EUIEN}OR JUBDYIUSIS Sy} pUB JAd{IBL PAYICOLLS JBIA-IAL] SBAM POYIOW UOIEN|BA J3SSE 3Y) ‘SIeak ¢ sem polsad uorjezipowe sy; pue pasofd ‘Aed Jo jusolad joA9] Sem poyIow UOHBZILOWE 3Y) [ewiou a8e-A1jud sem poyjow
1509 JRLIBNIOR Y} SMO}j0] S SI pajudsaxd uonenjea [RLIENIOR 1SI)B] 3Y] JO SB UONBILIOJUI [2UONIPPY 184 [edsyy Joixd oy} JO | £ JoquIaoa(] JO SE SUONEN[BA [RLIEN}OE U} JO Led S paurusjop sem pojuasald UONRLIOU Y],

uoneruLojuf Asejuswialddng pannbay o} sajoN

%L6'8 %651 %S0¥1 %8L Y1 %L991 %01 %EL'TH %10°CI %9L 01 %8y 11 Jjo1ded pazarod
Jo 38ejusorad e se suonngIuo)
6LS°L86  $ 801'9v6 § TSSLETT $ SLIL68 § 999°88L § €SYPST1 § OLSWPTT § 8SL99IT $§ TLL'SLTT $ 89€°LITD § 1lo1ked pasano))
- § - $ - § - § - § - $ - § - $ - R $ (s599x7) ADNHIDIITA NOLLAAIYINOD
809°88 995°6H1 18 ELL 186°2¢1 WY IEl 10151 1£4°851 0T10b1 SOS'LET £8L°6¢E1 UoRNQLIUOD PaUTULId)AP
AJjerienioe oy} 0} uonelal Wl suonnqIIUC)
80988 $ 995°SHi $ Iv8'eLl $ 185°TEl $ TLYiEl $ TIOIST $ IEV8SIT $ ozI'ovl § S9S°LEL § €8L6EL $ uoNNGINUd pouluIdkep AfjeLiendy
ST07 $707 €707 207 1202 0207 6107 8107 L102 9102 ‘0€ TIdV QAANT AVAA TVOSLI

SI183 X [BOSI] U] Ise]

QNN INFNFAHLLTA TYAIDINMIA SIONITTI
SNOLLOAGRILNOD Y4 A0 TdINE 40 F1NAFHDS

SIONITTI ‘NOSIaav
NOLLVIOOSSY NOLLVAIYDTY TVIDIdS 4DvdNd ISVIHLION



I.VMI

YER'SEY § S8IT81  § TTEPO® § S8ITIEr § C88EPD § SBECI8  $ GLL806 § SSIBYL § £SOVE6 § 6hI P88 S AL YY1 NOISNAJ LAN SHIAOTINT
008901y § OLVIISE § TTISELTE $ 1668LEE § PE60E8T $ 69656EC $ SLOTS6T $ O00SHOLT $ Q0L eyl § 1608071 § NIGNT ~ NOLLISOd LAN AUVIDNAIA NV1d
9LY11SE TTSELTE 166'8T¢°¢ $£6°0€8°C 696°S6€°T SLYTS6'] 00S¥9L'T 00E°EHY'1 L60°80C°1 1€5°LT6 BuruuiBaq - uonysod jou Arerdnply uejd
¥TE'S6S $S6°LET (69v°ss) LS0'861 S96vEY YT Eby SL1°881 00Z°1Z¢ £0Z°S€T 995°082 uonisod jou Areronpy uejd ur a3ueyo 19N
96€°6L¢ (001°8127) (6v0'cl) (€68°91) 9507 (059°0) yIL'L 61791) (988°¢) 088°F1 (133s5ue) 10U) JYIO
(rerieen) (889°sp) (5L6'0¢) (£22°08) (88€°¢E) (060°€2) (s6£'12) (T19'%20) (L62°00) (T16°LED) SUOHNGIUOD JaquIdw JO
spunjol 3uipnjoun ‘syustuied jijausg
S0£°652 v1S°L6T (ovv'612) Yoy 16€ 199°48T TLBSLT (coL'D 6£8°L81 96¥°L8 656y SWODU] JUSUWISIAUT JON
£L8'EP 1€8°14 LEL'SE £ET0E 789°8¢ yv6°8¢ 600°8¢ 108°9¢ €TI°8¢ yTreel laquiaul - suonngLIUoY
PLITOL  $ L6£T91  § 8STTLL § 98YETI  $ PS6THL  § SITHST $ OVSSOI  $ IGELEl $ LOL'EEl  § viTesl § Iakoydura - suonnginuo)
NOLLISOd LAN AdVIJNAl NVI1d
PEITPSY § 199°€69°C § VYS'LLOY § O9LIO9LE $ OSISVLKE $ ¥SE90TE § OSPI198C § SSOTIST § ES6LLET § OPET60C § ONIANT - ALI'TIGVIT NOISNAd TVIOL
199°€69°¢ YH8°LLOY 9LT09LE 918 VLY'E $S£°90T°¢ 0S¥°198°C $S9°TIST €S6°LLET 9rET60T 0STOILT Sujuurdaq - Ayjiqel] uoisuad felo ],
£L6°818 (€31°¥8¢) 899°L1E 09¢£°68C 97°89C 06 v¥E S6L‘SYE 0L'pEL L09°68C 960°8¢ Aypiqer) uorsuad [ej03 ur a8ueyd N
(rerecl) (889°SH) (sL6°0€) (€2T°0¢) (88¢°¢E) (060°¢7) (S6£°12) (T19'%2) (L6T°02) (116°LET) suonRQLIUOD Jaquaul Jo
spunja1 Surpnjout ‘syuswied njousyg
- (87L'1) - - (F10°L7) - 98t 1L (1s0°'Le) - - suondumsse Jo safuey)
£25°SH9 (6THv11L) 6£8°11 1228 L89°LY EPE8L 796°9¢ (s1L°¢9) 6809 TH0'80€ souapiadxs [enjoe pue
pa19adxe U9amiaq SaSUBISYII
- - - - - - - - - - SULId) J1youaq Jo saduey)
0rS$'$9Z 018967 SLLELT 908°75T 9v0PET £25°60T STE061 11081 16£°651 60£°9T1 183193U]
PECLL  $ TSSLL 0§ 6T0°C9 § 9SSHS 0§ IE€ILL 0§ 8TI08 0§ LIYIL 0§ 699%6L § ¥To98  $ 95968 § 1802 201A IS
ALI'TIGVIT NOISNE TV.LOL
[Z4\[4 £20T 0T 1202 0207 610¢ 8107 L10T 9107 S10T T€ JAGWADAC ALVA INTNTANSVIN

SIE3 X JUSULINSEIN U], 158

AN INFNTILLEY TYJIDINAW SIONITTI
SOLLVY QHLVTIY ANV ALITIEVIT NOISNAd LAN
SAFAOTdNE HHL NI SFONVHD 40 ATNAHHOS

SIONITTI ‘NOSIAav

NOLLVIDOSSY NOLLVINOEA 1VIDAdS IDVINA LSVIHLION



- mm -
(-110das saoypne juopuadopur 935)

AUON - #20T

sajes Ayjepow o} pajejal suondwnsse ut sa8uey) - €70Z

QUON - 7207

QUON - 120T

sojel A)ijeliow pue sajel Alejes ‘sajel uonjejjur o) pajejal suondwnsse ui sauey) - 0707
JUON - 6107

WInjal JO ajel JUWISaAUL ay; 0} pajefar suondwnsse us safuey) - 8107

sajes Aijeniow pue sajes Aie[es ‘sajel uonepjur 0 pajejas suondwnsse ut saBuey)) - £ 107

uoneunojuj Areyuowa|ddng pasinbay 03 sajoN

0L VY %0961 %0966 %0TV9 %06 YL %09'¢6 %0611 %00'S6 %0L 601 %01°96 ljo1Aed pasaa0d jo
a8ejuadiad e se Aipiqer; uoisuad jou s ofojdwsg
8v6'vL6  $ VLS'6T6 § LPELOS § IS8TIL9  § 609'6S8 § pT¥'S98  § LEETI® § 88SLBL $ TTITSE $ 188616 § jlosAed pasaao))
%106 %01°56 %0£°08 %0588 %0518 Y%0L YL %0789 %0T0L %0L°09 %0L'LS Arjiqer| uorsuad 2303 oy3 jo s8ejudoiad e se

uonisod 1su Azeronply uejd

yeoT €207 [44ix4  ¥41 14 0707 610T 810C LY0T 910C ST0T ‘1€ YAGIWIDAA TLVA INFWTUNSVIW



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025
(with comparative actual)

2025 2024
Final
Budget Actual Actual
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Salaries
Full-time salaries $ 902203 § 910,777 $ 1,015471
Part-time salaries 630,637 625,757 537,759
Total salaries 1,532,840 1,536,534 1,553,230
Insurance/personnel benefits
FICA and Medicare payments 117,262 114,698 113,544
Liability insurance 9,162 10,379 7,560
Property insurance 12,927 12,590 11,192
Pension plan 127,619 88,608 145,566
Hospitalization/health insurance 184,004 189,926 140,262
Unemployment compensation insurance 5,000 593 -
Workers' compensation insurance 5,560 6,012 4,521
Total insurance/personnel benefits 461,534 422,806 422,645
Professional services
Audit services 12,810 12,810 12,200
Legal services 5,000 5,280 1,665
Consultants 52,000 38,321 22,888
Payroll services 12,000 11,988 11,550
Business services 63,120 63,120 61,300
Total professional services 144,930 131,519 109,603
Operations
Printing 12,500 11,960 9,771
Office supplies/duplicating 10,550 8,040 9,536
Postage 3,000 2,176 3,320
Maintenance/operations supplies 71,255 27,666 54,036
Maintenance/contractual agreements 36,500 31,757 28,596
Bank fees and charges 24,164 20,021 19,006
Legal publications . 6,500 1,559 3,999
Loss prevention 16,000 13,730 11,763
Meeting related expenditures 4,150 2,134 2,553
Subscriptions and publications 5,000 5,131 3,665
Contractual services 61,452 42,050 34,196
Office improvements 31,400 29,654 30,363
Continuing educations/conferences 23,358 23,203 19,061
Marketing 11,000 17,247 6,041
Professional memberships 5,500 5,872 5,047
Equipment 20,021 20,449 18,631
Program supplies 126,701 118,246 99,151

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
-36 -



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION

ADDISON, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025
(with comparative actual)

2025 2024
Final
Budget Actual Actual
CULTURE AND RECREATION (Continued)
Operations (Continued)
Fundraising $ 35,500 $ 35505 % 26,954
Admissions/facility space 103,532 84,410 67,899
Statewide legislative initiative 500 913 122
Total operations 608,583 501,723 453,710
Utilities
Telephone 23,249 22,471 20,551
Internet/Wifi/cable 5,410 4,972 4,759
Electricity 16,414 23,463 15,449
Natural gas 7,210 6,424 5,527
Water 1,850 1,548 1,904
Total utilities 54,133 58,878 48,190
Other
Fundraising 16,500 17,496 12,078
Boosters - 9,280 10,675
Scholarship fee assistance 24,681 21,253 20,410
Implementation of survey 7,500 6,145 5,914
Special projects - 604 -
Bad debt expense 1,000 - 401
Contingency 17,580 15,841 14,444
ADA partner reserved expenses 110,070 110,069 109,020
Total other 177,331 180,688 172,942
Vehicles
Association vehicle fuel, equipment and tolis 19,250 19,395 14,513
Vehicle reimbursement, mileage and tolls 5,000 4,518 4,493
Parts replacement 18,500 11,747 14,927
Vehicles replacement 125,000 - 237,509
Van rental 5,400 3,000 2,917
Total vehicles 173,150 38,660 274,359
Capital outlay
Capital improvements 385,000 540,394 30,315
Total capital outlay 385,000 540,394 30315
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 3537501 $ 3411202 3 3.064.994

(See independent auditor's report.)



SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

MEMBER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025

Member
Member Agency Contributions
Addison Park District $ 348,436
Bensenville Park District 222,062
Butterfield Park District 77,372
Village of Glendale Heights 214,209
Itasca Park District 111,132
Lombard Park District 368,784
Medinah Park District 105,574
Oakbrook Terrace Park District 83,676
Village of Schiller Park 109,194
Village of Villa Park 172,570
Wood Dale Park District 168,785
TOTAL MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS $ 1,981,794

Note: Contributions are based upon the formula within the Articles of Agreement of the
Association.

(See independent auditor's report.)



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

DUE TO MEMBER AGENCIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2025

ADA
Member Agency Liability
Addison Park District $ 348,720
Bensenville Park District 153,911
Butterfield Park District -
Village of Glendale Heights -
Itasca Park District -
Lombard Park District -
Medinah Park District -
Oakbrook Terrace Park District -
Village of Schiller Park -
Village of Villa Park ‘ 69,444
Wood Dale Park District -
TOTAL DUE TO MEMBER AGENCIES $ 572,075

Note: Due to member agencies are based on agreements defined within the Articles of
Agreement of the Association.

(See independent auditor's report.)



- O*\ -
(-podar saonpne juspuadapur 993)

PIE'066T § €TTOILT § +96'985T § 6GIOBETT § 1I68VLT § VI09SET $ €SILSEC § VCT60EC § 9IVTEEeT § 6958LTCT § TVIOL
6LTY1 €691 0Z€'€T 1LL91 9G8°L 87C'61 $8¢€°8 LSLTI LIT1T S65¥91 SNOSUB[I20SIN
007" v¥e 00¥'¥¥T 6LL'SLT ¥60°TET 005°¢1 ¥11°89T 108°6¥T 081°7€T 008°¢HT - [RIUSIIULISA0ZIOJU]
116°S¢€l PreLL 88¥°601 STELOT 1¥5°6C £2LTT 01L6T1 170°sv1 9LEVSI TE6°11T tuawdo]aA3p punyg
£00°L9 S60°V1 6LS V1 9941 0veT 96T°L vL8°8 00€°C wiT 0LS‘1 palies jsalaquf
LLO'LYS 6T8°00V 8Y1°p9¢ Ly¥'861 086'%€ £60°S1€ 861°1LE 098°TS€ 996°'8v¢ €20°SLE S90IALGS 10J Sa31RYD)
VLIl § 0£9°916'1 § 0S9'66L'T $ 9161891 § ¥69°8S9'T § 09V'ETOT § SBIC6ST § 980F9ST § SIGTEST § 6HISTST $ suonnquod ouade JaquIsiy

$707 ot €707 7707 1707 0707 6107 8107 L10T 9107 sainog

SI1B3 X [BOSI] UQ] IS8

H2YNO0S Ad SHNANIATY

SIONITH ‘NOS1aav

NOILLVIOOSSY NOILLVIYOTY TVIOAdS 49VdNd LSVAHLION



- MAV -
(‘podaa s, 103pne juapuadapur 935)

ZOTTIFE § v661V90°C § SEOTHOT § ELVTI6T § €TH08FT § 8THOIEC § 886065C $ €65°9S1T $§ 01985CT § €65°10TC TVLOL
690°011 020°601 188°12T 820°65 - - - - - - sasuadxa paatesal suyed yqv
1¥8°S1 i2aad 8I€°L £0S“p 8€6°1 68T $T6°6 r44’a3 796°€ 060°¢ sapouadunuo)
- 10 9501 YTl 980°L1 698°L - - - - asuadxa 1qop peg
- - 000°01 000°01 62T°S €L9VT 095°€T 1LLST ¥$0°C 1207 sasuadxo AS10ukg
948 r16°s 6L6°C - - - - - - - Aaains Jo uonejuswafdwy]
- - - - - - S£8'c 08L°LE LO8TY OLE'SY Jenjoenuc)
€5TIT 01¥°0T 671°01 €LT°8 18 989°L1 STY'Y1 £59°v1 9117 £96°81 QouRIsIsse 233 diysIe[oyag
08Z°6 $L9°01 061°6 2 A SLL 856°€ LE6] 616t LOV'E 850°C sis)s00g
96%°L1 8L0°C1 L80°8 €0S°€T 099°6 068 120 1¥E°€T 1€€°TT 668°vT Suisteipun,|
P6£0PS S1E0¢ 96+°TL 90L°CST 960F€ $HETE 066°s8 - - €LLST suswasocxdwt [ende)
09 - - - - - - - - - sy0afoxd [e1oadg
099°8¢ 6SEYLT ¥8€TH LE9IT 69°L 8LT'8L 67501 9EGY 850°66 LTY'8€ SO[OIYSA
8.8°8S 061°8Y 78605 L00°TS LTS Th S9E0p 9TE T ovise ZE1PE 887°8¢ sannN
€TL10S 01L°ESH 616°95¢ 915°0vT LES6IT 4443 S0S°L0€ 058°087 888°€€T ¥h631¢€ suopeiadQ
61S°1€1 £09°601 827°691 £85°v6 SEL96 €76001 150°021 98L°€8 801°V6 £1€€9 SI0IALDS [BUOISSIJOI]
908°CCY SPOCLr PEVIEY SLO'P9E 00L°SS¢ €LS Ty £10°Cey LT80EY 9L6°TT 6LOCIY souBInSU]
VES9EST § OET'ESST $§ TSSLETT § PLIL68  § L9988L $ TSPVSTT $ ILSPPTT § 8SL99TT § ILL'SLTT $§ 89E€LIT] satie[eg

SZ02 202 €207 0T 1202 020z 6102 8102 L10T 9107 inog

SIB9 X [e9S1,] ua] Ise|

HOUNO0S Ad SHINLIANIIXE

SIONITTI ‘NOSIdav
NOILLVIDOSSV NOLLVIYOTY TVIDAdS ADOVINd LSVAHLION



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

SERVICE DEMOGRAPHICS - BY PARTNER AGENCY

April 30,2025
Distinct
Category Registrations  Individuals
DISABLED
Addison 1,144 167
Bensenville 231 79
Butterfield 6 6
Glendale Heights 614 229
Itasca 180 56
Lombard 988 266
Medinah 62 13
Oakbrook Terrace 14 8
Schiller Park 3 2
Villa Park 991 251
Wood Dale 420 61
Nonresident 1,196 579
Total disabled 5,849 1,717
NONDISABLED AND POINT OF SALE
Nondisabled 206 139
Point of Sale* 837 0
Total nondisabled and POS 1,043 139
TOTAL 6,892 1,856

*NEDSRA implemented Point of Services in the Spring of 2024 to increase ease of registrations to certain programs and events.
This resulted in 837 additional registrations during FY 2025.

Service Demographics

7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000

1,000

L R

Disabled Nondisabled

® Total Registrations  #® Unigue Individuals

(See independent auditor's report.)



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

SERVICE DEMOGRAPHICS - BY AGE GROUPS AND GENDER

April 30,2025

Age Group Demographics

e

22-55 yrs 56+ yrs Unknown

Unigue Individuals Total Registrations

Gender Demographics

3000
2500
2000
1500
1000

500

Male Female Unknown

® Unique Individuals Total Registrations

(See independent auditor's report.)



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

PROGRAM SUCCESS RATE

Last Two Fiscal Years

Programs Held

Season 2024 2025 Variance
Summer 150 156 6
Fall 183 173 -10
Winter 155 264 109
Spring 142 11 -131
TREC 5 8 3
Point of Sale 13 12 -1
Total 648 624 -24

Enrollment

Season 2024 2025 Variance
Summer 1,752 1,604 -148
Fall 1,773 1,950 177
Winter 1,319 2,255 936
Spring 1,303 147 -1156
TREC 66 99 33
Point of Sale 614 837 223
Total 6,827 6,892 65

(See independent auditor's report.)



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

MEDICAL CONDITION
(Most to Least Prevalent)

April 30, 2025

Medical Condition

Autism Spectrum Disorder
Intellectual Disability
Down Syndrome

Developmental Disability
Seizure Disorder/Epilepsy

Developmental Delay

Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder
Other Med Condition

Cerebral Palsy

Other Health Impaired

Learning Disablilty

Anxiety

Epilepsy

Speech Impairment / Impediment / Disorder
Vision Impaired

Apraxia

Deaf

Hard of Hearing

Physical Disability
Speech/Language impairment
Bipolar Disorder

Post Traumatic Stress Disorder

(See independent auditor's report.)



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

April 30,2025

INCLUSION SERVICES - BY PARTER AGENCY

Member
Community

Request for

Addison
Bensenville
Butterfield
Glendale Heights
ltasca

Lombard
Medinah
Oakbrook Terrace
Schiller Park
Villa Park

Wood Dale

Grand Totals

(See independent auditor's report.)

Unique Individuals

Served

D o RN

m Glendale Heights

# Qakbrook Terrace

92



NORTHEAST DUPAGE SPECIAL RECREATION ASSOCIATION
ADDISON, ILLINOIS

HISTORICAL SERVICE COMPARISON

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Number of
Programs/ Separate
Services Individuals Number of
Service Year Implemented Served Registrations
2015-2016 711 3,684 9,292
2016-2017 620 2,833 7,621
2017-2018 523 3,414 7,760
2018-2019 551 3,373 7,454
2019-2020 425 1,882 4,305
2020-2021 374 348 2,709
2021-2022 368 1,430 4,025
2022-2023 575 2,113 6,353
2023-2024 648 1,661 6,827
2024-2025 624 1,856 6,892

(See independent auditor's report.)



ACCOUNT NAME & Medinah Park District
ADDRESS 22W130 Thorndale Avenue

Medinah, IL 60157

Mark Goode
{224) 524-0005

mark@medinahparkdistrict.org

% RELIABILITY & Details concerning the level of coverage you have along with Otis' method
O~ RESPONSIVENESS for ensuring timely dispatching and parts availability to meet your needs
%(;8 COMMUNICATION Summary of the many ways for you to communicate with us and receive

M information from us
SAFETY & Safety is our number one priority- this section includes an outline of safety
ENVIRONMENT features and activities pertaining to your equipment
SCHEDULE & Terms and conditions about our regular working hours, insurance coverage
CLARIFICATIONS aond legal requirements

PAYMENT & Price and term of agreement followed by the signatory area and billing
ACCEPTANCE information

Otis Elevator Company 949 OAK CREEK DRIVE
M: LOMBARD, IL 60148
ofis.com

For emergencies:
OTISLINE® Customer Care 800.233.6847

Confidential



6/6/2024

CUSTOMER NAME OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
Medinah Park District 949 OAK CREEK DRIVE
22W130 Thorndale Avenue LOMBARD, IL 60148

Medinah, IL 60157

PROJECT LOCATION PROPOSAL NUMBER
MEDINAH PARK DISTRICT QTE-001927213
22W130 THORNDALE AVE

MEDINAH, IL 60157-9638

Oftis Elevator Company or "we" agree to furnish Ofis Lubricate and Survey Service to Customer or “you" on
the equipment ("Units") described below as set forth in this Contract.

No Of Units Type Of Units  Manufacturer Customer Designation Machine Number
1 Hydraulic Motion Controls F16079
Eng. (MCE)

CONTRACT PRICE

The contract gross price is one hundred thirty-five doliars {$135.00} per month, payable annuadlly in advance.
If you select a different payment frequency, please initial next to the additional cost to be applied to your
contract price.

Billing Additional Initial to
Frequency Cost Accept
Monthly +4%
Quarterly +3%
Semi-annually +2%

TERM & RENEWAL
The Commencement Date will be 6/1/2024. The initial term of this Contract will be for one (1) year(s) and

ten {10} month(s) beginning on the Commencement Date.

This Confract will automatically renew for successive one (1) year and ten (10) month terms uniess
terminated by either party by giving written notice to the other party at least 20 days, but no more than 120
days prior to the end of the then-current term.

Page | 2



PAYMENT

Payments will be due and payable on or before the first day of each year for the term of the Contract, in
accordance with the payment instructions on your invoice. The work shall be performed for the agreed
price plus any applicable sales, excise or similar taxes as required by law. In addition to the agreed price,
you shall pay to us any future applicable tax imposed on us, our suppliers or you in connection with the
performance of the work described.

INVOICE DELIVERY

The standard method of invoice delivery is via email. Please provide your email address{es) in the bill to
section of this document. You agree to immediately update us with any changes o the invoice delivery
email address{es}. If you wish o receive your invoices via Mail, an additional fee of $5.00 per month will be
added to your monthly contract price.

Alternate Invoice Additional Inifial fo
Delivery Method Cost Accept
Mail $5.00

AUTOPAY

Visit https://otis.payinvoicedirect.com to register for autopay to automatically debit your bank account for
your invoice payments.

PRICE ADJUSTMENT

The Confiract Price will be adjusted on the Commencement Date anniversary or as of the effective date of
any labor rate increase by the percentage increase in the straight time hourly labor cost under the
international Union of Elevator Constructors. The term "straight time hourly labor cost" means the sum of the
straight time hourly labor rate plus the hourly cost of fringe benefits paid to elevator examiners in the locality
where the equipment is maintadined. In addition, Otis may adjust the Contract Price as a result of any
substantial changes in service expenses, including but not limited to expenses in connection with fuel, waste
disposal, environmental requirements, cost of mafterials, changes to government regulations or other
administrative costs. If the price adjustment date and billing frequency do not dlign, the price adjustment
date will be changed to ensure continued alignment with the billing frequency.

SURVEY

We will conduct an annual survey of the Units and provide a written report to you.

REGULAR VISITS

We will use trained personnel directly employed and supervised by us to visit the Units at a quarterly
frequency.

INCLUDED IN VISITS
The visits will consist of lubrication of the following parts when conditions warrant:
¢ Machine bearings, gears, pumps, pump motors, operating valves, valve motors and leveling

valves.
o Selectors, governors, governor sheaves, governor fension frame sheave assemblies and

compensating sheave assemblies.
e Door operators, car door hangers, hoistway door hangers, and interlocks.
¢ Safeties, car and counterweight guide rails, and car and counterweight guide shoes including

rollers and gibs.

Page | 3



CUSTOMER REPRESENTATIVE

As a service to you, and atf your request, an Ofis representative will be available to discuss with you about
modernization, traffic handling ability, recommendations and requirements of Code authorities, proper use
and care of the Units, and the OMMSTM program. There is no additional charge for this consulting service,
but by making this service available to you, Otis does not assume any duty to warn and you agree to not
hold or seek fo hold Otis responsible or liable whatsoever in connection with, arising out of, or related to any
recommendation or alleged duty fo or failure to warn,

REPORTS — CUSTOMER PORTAL

We will, at your request, provide you access to the Customer Portal, our propriefary customer interface that
permits you to access electronic records of repair, completed maintenance procedures and service call
history for the Unit{s) during the prior twelve {12} months. You will be responsible for obtaining Internet access
fo use the Customer Portal.

SAFETY

We will conduct safety tests only if required by the applicable Elevator Code in effect on the
Commencement Date of the initial term. Tests that are subsequently required by the applicable Elevator
Code or authority having jurisdiction are not covered under this Coniract, but may be performed for an
additional charge which shall be presented at the time of request to perform any such additional test. We
will instruct our personnel to use appropriate personal protection equipment and foliow safe work practices.

SAFETY TESTS - HYDRAULIC ELEVATORS
We will conduct an annual no load test and annual pressure relief valve test.

FIREFIGHTERS' SERVICE TEST

If the equipment has firefighters' service, you assume responsibility for performing and keeping a record of
any Code required tests and for the maintenance, functioning and testing of the smoke and/or heat
detectors. f during the inifial firefighters' service fest any elevator firefighters' service is found to be
inoperable, the building and or you will be responsible for all of the cost associated with the repairs necessary
to bring the unit in compliance with the applicable Codes. If any applicable Code or governing authority
mandates that such required tests be performed by a licensed elevator mechanic, Ofis will provide such
testing and service for an additional charge on an open order basis. You will be responsible for the costs
associated with such testing and service.

24 - HOUR DISPATCHING

Oftis will, at your request, provide you with access to the Customer Portal and our OTISLINE™ 24-hour, year-
round dispatching service, In the event a Unit malfunction occurs between regular examinations, you will
be able to place a service call on the Customer Portal or through an OTISLINE™ customer service
representative, who will, at your request, dispatch an examiner to perform service. In the event Otis receives
an emergency call from the phone in the elevator and a passenger indicates a need for assistance, Ofis
shall attempt to contact a building representative for an assessment of the situation and authorization to
respond to the call. If Otis is unable to reach a building representative, Ofis shall respond to the emergency
call from the phone in the elevator. The visit will be freated as chargeable service request. Any service
required outside of normal working hours will be billed to you in accordance with the work schedule detail

below.

NORMAL HOURS

All visits will be performed during the regular working hours of our regular working days for the examiners
who perform the service. If overtime services are later requested by you, you agree to pay exira at our
regular billing rates or overtime rates, as may be applicable.

Regular working hours: 8:00 AM — 4:30 PM.

Page | 4



Regular working days: Monday -~ Friday excluding holidays.

OVERTIME SERVICE REQUESTS

Service requests outside of regular working hours will be billed at standard overtime rates.

EXCLUSIONS

Lubrication of paris that are not listed above is specifically excluded. This Contract does not cover
adjustments, cleaning, repairs, or any service requests (including but nof limited o regular or emergency
service requests). If any of these services are later requested by you, you agree to pay extra at our regular
or overtime billing rates as applicable, including costs associated with travel fime and other expenses. No
service other than that specifically mentioned is included or intended.

OTIS SERVICE EQUIPMENT, SOFTWARE, AND ANALYTICS

Any counters, meters, tools, machinery, remote monitoring devices, or communication devices which we
may use or install under this Contract remain our property, solely for the use of Otis employees. Such service
equipment is not considered a part of the Units. You grant us the right fo store or install such service
equipment in your building and to electrically connect it to the Units. You will restrict access to the service
equipment to authorized Otis personnel. You agree fo keep the software resident in the service equipment
in confidence as a frade secret for Otis. You will not permit others to use, access, examine, copy, disclose
or disassemble the service equipment or the software resident in the service equipment for any purpose
whatsoever. If the Contract or service is ferminated for any reason, we will be given access to your premises
fo remove the service equipment, including the resident software, at our expense.

Software owned by Otis may be embedded in parts or otherwise provided by Ofis as part of this Contract.
Otis grants to you the non-exclusive right to use this software only for operation of the units for which the part
was provided. You may not otherwise copy, display, adapt, modify, distribute, reverse assemble, reverse
compile, disassemble, decompile, or otherwise translate the software. You will not transfer possession of the
sofiware except as part of a transfer of ownership of the Units and the assumption of the rights and
obligations under this Contract by the transferee.

Otis may at its sole and absolute discretfion employ remote diagnostics and predictive analytics fo provide
customized service and improve efficiency and increase your satisfaction {"Ofis Service Software” or
“Service Software"). The Ofis Service Software is an Oftis frade secret deployed pursuant to your service
contract fo enhance our efficiency and your experience with Otis service. The data generated by these
Otis service diagnostic and predictive analytical tools shall be and remain the property of Otis. You agree
to keep the Service Software in confidence and proprietary to Otis. You will not permit others fo use, access,
examine, copy, disclose, reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble the Service Software for any reason.
Upon termination of this Contract, regardiess of the reason, Otis may disable either remotely and/or via
onsite visit (which you hereby permit} such Service Software. You retain your rights fo any software not
provided by Otis contained in the Unils and agree to allow Ofis to make one backup or archival copy of
such software.

MAINLINE DISCONNECTS

You agree to engage a qudlified electrician on an annual basis to service the elevator mainline disconnects
located in the elevator equipment room.

ACCESS
You agree o provide us with a safe workplace as well as unrestricted ready and safe access o all areas of

the building in which any part of the Units are located and to keep all machine rooms and pit areas free
from water, stored materials, debris, and other potentially hazardous condifions.

Page | 5



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Ofis has practices in place to reduce generation of waste materials, to minimize risks to the environment,
customers, the general public and Otis employees, and to comply with federal and state environmental
laws and regulations. Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) Manuals are available for review at your request.
You assume responsibility for and agree to remove and remediate any waste or hazardous materials
including but not limited to hydraulic oil spills, asbestos, or other hazardous materials in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

MALFUNCTIONING UNITS OR DANGEROUS CONDITIONS

If any Unit is malfunctioning or is in a dangerous condition, you agree to immediately nofify us using the 24-
hour OTISLINE™ service. Until the problem is comected and the malfunction or dangerous condition is
eliminated, you agree to remove the Unit from service and take all necessary precautions to prevent access
or use.

INSTRUCTIONS / WARNINGS
You agree to properly post, maintain, and preserve any and afl instructions or warnings to passengers in
connection with the use of any Unifs.

LOCK OUT / TAG OUT (“LOTO")

In furtherance of OSHA's directive contained in 29 C.F.R. § 1910.147{(f)(2}{i}, which requires that a service
provider {an “outside employer") and its customer (an "on-site employer”) must inform each other of their
respective lock out/tag out ("LOTO") procedures whenever outside servicing personnel are to be engaged
in control of hazardous energy activities on the customer's site, Ofis incorporates by reference its
mechanical LOTO procedures and its electrical LOTO procedures. These procedures can be obtained at
www.otis.com by clicking on “Tools & Resources” on the home page, selecting "Lockout Tagout Policy™
under the “"Safety Information” column and downloading the “Lockout Tagout Policy Otis 6.0" and
“Mechanical Energy Policy Otis 7.0," or the then most current version, both of which are in .pdf format. You
agree that you will disseminate these procedures throughout your organization to the appropriate personnel
who may interact with Otis personnel while Otis personnel are working on site at your facility and will ensure
that such personnel comply with these LOTO procedures while Otis personnel are working on site.

WIRING DIAGRAMS

You agree to provide us with current wiring diagrams reflecting all previously made changes for Units
covered by this Contract to facilitate proper maintenance of the equipment as set forth in this Contract.
Ofis shall maintain the wiring diagrams so that they properly reflect any changes made by Ofis to the
equipment. These diagrams will remain your property.

SERVICE TOOLS
You are responsible to secure our right to use any special service fools required to maintain your non- Otis
equipment. These tools must be provided prior to us beginning maintenance on such equipment.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE UNITS

it is agreed that Ofis does not assume possession or control of the Units, that such Units remain yours solely
as owner and operator, lessee, or agent of the owner or lessee, and that you are solely responsible for all
requirements imposed by any federal, state, or local law, Code, ordinance or regulation.

APPLICABLE CODE AND VIOLATIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision to the confrary (including without limitation provisions regarding order
of precedence) whether in this document or any other contract document, Otis’ work shall be performed
in accordance with the applicable law, code, or reguiation in effect on the date that Ofis submitted to

Page | 6



you it's initial proposal and not any subsequently changed, amended, altered, or implemented law, code,
or regulation.

You assume responsibility for the cost of cormrecting all Elevator Code violations existing as of the
Commencement Date, as well as throughout the duration of the Coniract. If such Elevator Code violations
or other outstanding safety violations are not corrected in accordance with this Contract, Otfis may, in
addition to any other remedies resulting from material breach of your obligations hereunder, with respect
to the equipment not meeting Elevator Code requirements, cancel and remaove such equipment from this
Contract without penaity to Otis by providing thirty {30) days written notice.

THIRD PARTY INTERFACE
Should you reguire us to interface with a third party, Otis will add an appropriate fee to cover the additional
cost associated with this service.

ELECTRICAL AND LIGHTING REQUIREMENTS
You agree fo provide a grounded, 3-prong electrical system and proper lighting in the machine rooms and
pifs.

ACCIDENT

You will provide Otis with written notice within twenty-four (24} hours after occurrence of any accident or
incident in or about the elevator (s} and/or escalator(s) that leads to any injury or is alleged to cause any
injury. You will provide such written notice to us, and if required by law, to any local authorities. You further
agree o preserve any parts that are replaced after such an incident.

ENTRAPMENT

In the event of an entrapment, you will call Otis and wait for a trained and licensed elevator mechanic to
arrive, except for a medical emergency situafion where it may be appropriate to summon a professional
first responder such as police or firemen. You agree that your agents, confractors, employees or
representatives shall not atiempt to extricate any passengers from an elevator that becomes stalled within
the hoistway. Any entrapment responded to by Otis shall be freated as a chargeable service request unless
otherwise deemed covered under this Contract by Ofis.

ALTERATIONS
You will not allow others to make alterations, additions, adjustments, or repairs 1o the units.

PRIVACY

The products and/or services being provided may result in the collection of Personal Information. The Parties
will comply with applicable Data Privacy Laws as they pertain to personal information processed in
connection with activity under this Confract, “Personal Information” shall mean information and data
exchanged under this Contract related to an identifiable natural person. “Processing” of Personal
Information shall mean the operation or set of operations whether automated or not, performed on Personal
Information such as collecting. recording, organizing. structuring, storing, adapting, altering, retrieving,
consulting, using, disclosing, sharing or erasing. “Controller" shall mean the party that determines the
purposes and means of processing Personal information. With respect to any Personal Information provided
by you to Ofis, you shall be the Coniroller and you warrant that you have the legal right to share such
Personal Information with Otis and you shall be responsible for all obligations relating to that data, including
without limitation providing notice or obfaining consent as may be required by law. Once you have lawfully
provided Persondal Information to Oftis, you and Ofis shall become co-Controllers. Otis may share such
Personal Information internally, across borders and with service providers in accordance with applicable
Data Privacy Laws. Otis may transfer information subject to corporate rules of its parent company. Otis may
store Personal Information provided by you on servers located and accessible globally by Otis or its parent
and fheir services providers. The parties agree to cooperate and fo take reasonable commercial and legal

Page | 7



steps to protect Personal Information against undue disclosure. In this regard each party shall nofify the
otherin the event of a data breach, which shall include the actual or unauthorized access to or possession
of, or the loss or desfruction of, Personal informafion, whether intentional or accidental. The party whose
system was compromised in the data breach incident shall be responsible for any nofifications and
associated costs. Should either party receive in any form, {i) a complaint or allegation indicating a violation
of applicable data privacy law, (i) a request seeking access to correct or delete Personal Information or {iii)
an inquiry or complaint related fo the processing of personal information, said party shall take reasonable
commercial steps fo immediately nofify the other party.

PURCHASE ORDERS

Any purchase order issued by you in connection with services to be provided by Otis shall be deemed to
be issued for your administrative or billing identification purposes only, and shall not be binding upon Otis
under any circumstance. The parties agree that the terms and conditions contained herein will exclusively
govern the services 1o be provided.

MATERIAL BREACH BY CUSTOMER

Failure fo pay any sum due by you within sixty (60} days will be considered a material breach under this
Contract. You agree to pay a late charge from the date such sums become due of one and one-half
percent (1.5%] per month (18% per annumj, or the highest legally permitted rate, whichever is less, on any
balance past due for more than thirty (30} days, together with all costs {including, but not limited to, legal
fees) incurred by us to collect any overdue amounts. In addition, the following events shall constitute a
material breach of your obligations under this Contract: (1) failure to nofify Ofis of a dangerous condition
or malfunction, or for a Unit that has a dangerous condition or is malfunctioning, to take the unit out of
service; (2} failure to provide unrestricted and safe access to all areas of the building in which any part of
the Units are located: (3) failure to provide a safe workplace or failure o adhere to our safety requirements;
{4) failure to remove hazardous waste; (5) failure to adhere to lock-out/tag-out procedures; (4 failure to
upgrade. improve or modernize the Units if Ofis reasonably determines that such Units are unsafe to
employees, inspectors or the riding public without such upgrades, improvements or modernization; and/or
{7) failure to correct Elevator Code violations. In the event of a material breach by you, Otis shall be eniitled
to immediately suspend the affected Units or terminate service without prejudice to Ofis, at its sole discretion.

TERMINATION FOR CUSTOMER’S BREACH

If this Contract is terminated for your material breach or for any reason other than our own default, you
agree to immediately pay as liquidated damages, fifty percent (50%) of the remaining amount due under
the current term of this Contract. The parties agree that quantifying Otis' losses arising from your material
breach or premature termination would be difficult and uncertain, and further agree that the agreed upon
formula is not a penalty, but rather a reasonable measure of Ofis' damages which are based on Otis'
experience in the elevator service industry and the losses that may result from such premature termination
or material breach of this Contract.

TRANSFER OF INTEREST IN PROPERTY

In the event that you sell the property or your interest in the property is terminated prior to the expiration of
the Contract, you agree to undertake best efforts to assign the Contract to the new owner or successor and
to cause the new owner to assume your obligations under this Contract. If the new owner or successor fails
to assume your obligations under the Confract, then you agree immediately to pay fo Ofis fifty percent
{(50%) of the remaining amount due under the unexpired term of the Coniract as liquidated damages. The
parties agree that quantifying Otis' losses arising from the failure of the new owner or successor to assume
this Coniract would be difficult and uncertain, and further agree that the agreed upon formula is not a
penally, but rather a reasonable measure of Otis' damages which are based on Otis' experience in the
elevator service industry and the losses that may result from such failure to assume upon a fransfer.

FORCE MAJEURE
Page | 8



Otis shall not be liable for any loss, damage or delay due to any cause beyond our reasonable control
including, but not limited to, acts of government, strikes, lockouts, other labor disputes, fire, explosion, theft,
floods, water damage, weather damage, exireme weather, traffic condifions, epidemic, pandemic,
quarantine (including Covid-19}, sabotage, national emergency, act of terrorism, earthquake, riot, civil
commotion, war or insurrection, vandalism, misuse, abuse, mischief, or acts of God or nature.

LIMITATION ON DAMAGES

Other than as specifically set forth above, under no circumstances {including third party claims} will either
party be liable for any indirect, special, liquidated, or consequential damages of any kind, including, but
not limited to, fines or penalties, loss of profits, loss of rents, loss of good will, loss of business opporfunity,
additional financial costs, or loss of use of any equipment or property, whether in contract, torl, warranty or

otherwise.

INDEMNITY

Otis shall indemnify you for damages related to accidents and injuries 1o persons or property only when
adjudged to have been caused by Ofis' sole negligence or willful misconduct. In all other instances, you
shall defend, indemnify, and hold Otis harmless against all, damages, losses, costs, and expenses (including
reasonable legal fees) in connection with any claims, demands, suits or proceedings made or brought
against Ofis arising out of or connected with the use, repair, maintenance, operation or condition of the
Units or your obligations under, or material breach of, this Contract.

THIRD PARTIES

We are not obligated to comply or contract with any 3rd party vendors or execute vendor forms nof in
alignment with our contract terms. While we are not obligated, fo the extent that we agree to work with
the third party vendor, it will be for administrative purposes only and any costs associated will be passed
through to customer. In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this agreement and

vendor agreement, this document will prevail.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Customer shall not disclose to any third party the terms of this Contract except as required by law or as
necessary for the purposes of obtaining professional legal or accounting advice. This confidentiality
provision is an integral part of this Contract and is a material condition upon which this Contract is based
and shall survive the termination of this Contract.

ENTIRE CONTRACT

This Contract constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement beftween us for the services to be provided
and your authorization to perform as outlined herein. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein, all prior or
contemporaneous oral or writfen representations or agreements regarding the subject matter herein not
incorporated herein will be superseded.

This Contract will be deemed voidable, even after execution, if it is determined at Otis’ discretion that
performance of the services and/or engagement in the contractual relationship/fransaction will violate, or
is otherwise restricted by, any and all laws, regulations and/or orders, including sanctions laws, that are
applicable to Ofis or otherwise apply to Ofis’ operations.

OUT OF SCOPE SERVICES
To the extent that work order or purchase order numbers are required for work not included in the scope

of this agreement, you agree to provide the required information at the time of service request. Failure to
provide all required valid information at the time of the service request does not release your obligations
to make payment for completed out of scope services in accordance with the payment terms of this

agreement.

Page | ¢



AMENDMENT

This Contract may not be changed, modiified, revised or amended unless in writing signed by you and an
authorized representative of Otis. Further, any manual changes to this form will not be effective as to Ofis
unless initialed by an authorized representative of Ofis.

Page | 10



SUBMITTED BY: Sean Sullens
TITLE: Sr Associate, Account Mgmt
E-MAIL: Sean.Sullens@otis.com

Accepted in Duplicate

Date: é//(;/./géZ Date:_7/15/24

Signed: Signed:
< VN
;7 '
e - e //7
Print Nc/me,\ \72’4;( \ 1.0 // Print Name: Jorie Balogh
Title: 7‘?&“/,@5/\}’7—“ Title: Director & GM - Chicago Suburbs
Email: Email: Joriel.Balogh@otis.com

Company Name: Medinah Park District

Principal, Owner or Authorized Representative of
Principal or Owner

o Agent

Page | 11



BILL TO INFORMATION ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CONTACT

Company Name: Medinah Park District Name: Steven Muenz

Address: 22 W 130 THORNDALE AVE Phone Number: 224-524-0005

Address 2: Email: steven@medinahparkdistrict.org

City: MEDINAH Email Address for Invoice Delivery:
steven@medinahparkdistrict.org

State: Email Address for Statement Delivery

(if different from above):

Zip Code: 601579638

TAX STATUS
Are you tax exempte (Check one) Yes No
L X ] |

If yes, please provide tax exempt certificate
PURCHASE ORDER & WORK ORDER REQUIREMENTS
Contractual Services Yes No
Do you require a Purchase Order to be listed on your invoices for this service M
agreement (Check one}e
If yes to above, please provide contact for PO renewal:

Name:

Phone:

Email Address:

Purchase Order Expiration Date:

Purchase Order Number:

Monthly Quarterly Annual

Purchase Order Renewal
Frequency (Check one)

Page | 12



NON-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES Yes No

Do you require a Purchase Order o be listed on your invoices for work NOT
included in this service agreement {Check one)? {If a purchase order is M
required for service calls to be billed, service calls will not be dispatched
without a PO except in the event of an entrapment)

PO# Valve
If providing a blanket PO, please provide PO# and value:
WORK ORDER MANAGEMENT Yes No
Do you require enroliment in a workorder management system@ K
Please provide system name:
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

Yes No
Do you require a cerlificate of insurance? X

If yes to above, please provide the Qelow for your cerlificate of insurance:
Certificate Holder Name: ) DQN.A&?AQ-%~7}>\ C2 L

Certificate Holder Address: ’),’),\,D\moﬂ,ﬂm\’& A\:Ewu’é; M%kﬁ@.\bt-” } ),. . !QO)§7

Email address for delivery of
certificate:

{If not provided, the certificate
will be sent out via standard

mail to the certificate holder
address) SY'@/&-‘@ ,M%nwppa&b\s’\'@\a .o

Yes No
Do you require upload of your certificate to a third party site? ﬂ

If yes, please provide site name:

Page | 13



LICENSE AGREEMENT TO ALLOW METRA
TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN COMMUTER PARKING FACILITIES
ON PROPERTY OWKNED BY THE MEDINAH PARK DISTRICT

THIS LICENSE AGREEMENT, r{“g\gremxem“le Metra Agreemens No. :
made this of .20 , by and between the COMMUTER RAIL DIVISION
OF THE REGIONAL TRANSPORT f"a.‘”l”%(}i\ Aii,, THORITY d'b/a Metra, a division of an Hlinois
municipal corporation ("“Metra™ and the MEDINAH PARK DISTRICT, a body corporate and
politie created and organized under the laws of Hlinois ¢the “Park Distriet™) Metra and the Park
District are hereinatier sometimes mdividually referred 1o as a “Party” and joimly referred 1o as
the "Parties.”

RECITALS

A, Metrg's Medingh Commuter Swation i3 cumrently served by fwo commuter parking
facilities, Lot #1 and Lot 82 {combined, the “Lets™) cach on propeny jointly owned by the
Fartics,

B, Cm Exhibit A, avached hereto aul made 2 part of this Agresment, Metra's portion of the
Lots is debineated in the color red and the Park Distriet’s portion of the Lots is delinested in the
color rguetse {the Park Eistrict’s portion of the Lots 15 the “Premises™).

C. The Park Dastrict has been operating and maintaining the Lots since at beast Janvary 1,
1994, through a variety of agreements. Currently, Lot #1 15 contrelled by an agreement entered by
the Parties on March 16, 2016, Metra Agreement No, NOIRGT, The ponion of Lot #2 owned by
Metra is used by the Park District, pursuant o a lease agreement entered by the Parties on May
11, 2001, Metra Agreement No, LRI S (combing, the “Old Apreements™),

0. The Park Diswrict wishes (o tenminate the Old Agreements on September 29, 2024, and
turn over the responsibilities 1o operate and maintain the Lots to Metra effective September 29,
2024,

E. The Parties are i the process of segolinting a property exchange whereby Metra will
acguire the Prewsises from the Park Distriet in exchange for eguivaiont valued property or

propertics owned by Metra.

F. The Parties wish 1o enter intoe this Agreement to allow Metra 10 oporate and masmniain the
Premiscs, commencing on September 29, 2024, until such time as the Parties complete the
aforementioned property exchange.

AGREEMENT

NOW THERFORE, The Parties agree as follaws;

Page 1 al2



1. Pursuant to this Agreement, the Park Disrict does hereby grast Mewa a license (the
“License”} o operate and maintain the Premises for the continuing vse of Metra commuters.
2. This Agreement shall commence on September 29, 2024 ({the "Commencement Date™}
and continue o force and effect until Seplember 39, 2025, unless the property exchange is
completed prior 1 September 29, 2023, in which case, this Agreement will terminate upon the
delivery of the property that is the Premises from District to Metra, If the property exchange has
not been finabized prior to Septemnber 29, 2023, the f&gm@nwm shall survive on a month-to-
gx s

mmmh mw&s aett t:l such 1émc as the property exchange is completed. Bither P
! st Loy {34

3. On September 29, 2024, Metra or Metra's contractor will assume the collection of af]
parking revenue and any pay machines owned by the Park District shall be removed by the Park
Dristrict from the Lots,

€

4. O Seprember 29, 2024, the Ol Agreements shall be rerminated and, o the exten
allowable, be of no more force and ¢ffeet.

5. Any rights e the Premises not specifically granted to Metra herein are reserved to the
Park Dastrict and 115 successors and/or assigns

&, Metra agrees o operate, maintain, repair, or replace the Premises as needed throughout
the Term of thes Agreement,

7. Upon completion of any recopstruction, replacement, repair or maintenance of the
Premises, Metrs shall remove any debris and restore, or cause to be restored the Pretizes w the
reasonable satisfaction of the Park Distrier

Heords shall defend, indemnify and hold the §
officers, officials, ﬁi’l’)jﬁ]{"‘rhk‘s and agents harmless from any and 8l claims, injuries, damages,

fosses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or in connection with the performance of
this Agreement or the use of the i’mni ex.

-4

a Metra and the Park District agree that if any provision of this Agreement is held invalid
for any reason whatsoever, the remsining provisions shall not be affected thereby o such
remainder would then continue to conform to the purposes, terms and requirements of applicable

W Metra and the Park District agree thal ne change or modification o this Agresment or
any Exhibits or attachments heretn, shall be of any foree or effect unless such amendment s
dated, reduced to writing, exceoted by both parties, and attached to and made a part of this
Agreement. No work shall be commenced, and no costs or obligations incwrred in consequence

Page 2 of 2



of any amendment 1o ths Agreement or any aitaclments hereto unless and wntil such amendment
has been executed and made a pant of this Agreement and the Project Budget has been amended
to conform thereto.

1. This Agreement muy be simulianeously executed in several counterparts, each of which
50 executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such coumterparts pgether shall constinge one
and the seme mstrument.

P20 This Agreement represeats the entire agreement between Metrs and the Park District and
supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements, This Agreorncat shall be construed in
accordance with the internal faws of the State of Hlinois. This Agreement may be amended only
be written instrument signed by both parties hereto.

15, All notices, demands, elections, and other instruments required or permitted o be given
or made by either party upon the other under the terms of this Agreement or any statore shall be
i writig, Such communications shall be deemed 10 have been sufficiently served if sent by
certified or registered mail with proper postage prepaid. band deliversd or sent by facsimile
transmission, with proof of successful wansmission sent by regular mail by the seanding party at
the respective addresses shown below, or to such other party or address as either party may from
time to time fernish to the other in writing. Such notices. demands, elections and ather
insteuments shatl be considered delivered 1o recipient on the second business day after deposit in
the LLS. Mail, on the day of delivery if hand delivered.

a, MNotices to Metra shall be sent

Commuter Rail Davision
37T W, Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, Mincis 60661
Adin: Chael of Saaff
Phone: {312) 322-6753

b, Notices to Park Distniet shall be sent to

Maodinah Park Districs
23W130 Thorndale
Medingh Park Distnee
Medinah, lHhinois 60157
Ann: Steven Mueng
Phone: (630) 893-2560

14, This Agreement and the rights and obligations aceruing hereunder are hinding vpon the
Parties and their respective beirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. No waiver of any
ebligation or default of the Park District shall be implied from omission by Metra o take any

Page 3 of 2



action on account of such ebligation or default, and no express walver shall affect any obligaton
or default other than the obligation or default specified in the express waiver and thei only Tor
tite time and 10 the exten therein ststed.

13, Section captions used i this Agreement are lor convenience only and shall not affect the
construction of this Agreement. Whenever the context requires or peresits, the singular shall
include the plural, the plural shall include the singular, and the masculing, feminine and neuter
shall be freely mterchangesble. In the evemt the tme for performance hereunder falls on a
Saturday, Sunday or heliday, the actal time for performance shall be the next business day.

16, This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the Swte of lineis, This Agreement
provides for the development and maimtenance of real estate located within the Siate of llinois
and is 10 be performed within the State of inois. Accordingly, this Agreement, and a1l questions
of imterpretation, construction, and enforcement bereof, and all controversies hereunder shall be
governed by the applicable statutory asd common law of the State of Himois.

{sirnature page to follow)

Pagcdof 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement 18 entered into by and between the Parties
hereto as of the date and year first above wrilten.

MEDINAH PARK DISTRICT: COMMUTER RAIL DIVISION OF THE
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY d/bla METRA:

By:

James M. Darwinghi
CEQExscutive Diractor

Ef-e—.ésa print name and litle

Page 5of2



Page 6 of 2






RESOLUTION 25 - 16

A RESOLUTION APPROVING OF EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES
AND DETERMINING WHICH MINUTES TO RELEASE OR HOLD

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Medinah Park
District, DuPage County, lllinois, as follows:

SECTION ONE: Pursuant to Section 2.06 of the Open Meetings Act (5
ILCS 120/2.06), the Board of Park Commissioners (the “Board”) has reviewed minutes of
all executive sessions.

SECTION TWO: That the minutes or portions of minutes for the following
executive sessions shall hereby be made available to the public for inspection, as the
Board finds they no longer require confidential treatment:

04/16/25

SECTION THREE: That the minutes or portions of minutes for the following
executive sessions remain closed, because the Board finds the need for confidentiality

as to all or a part of such minutes still exists:

05/17/95 para 2
11/18/96 para 3
03/18/98 sect 2
12/15/99
12/19/01 sect 1,2
04/17/02
09/18/02 sect 2a,2b
01/15/03 sect 1,2
05/21/03 sect 1
10/15/03 sect 3
03/24/04 sect 1a,1b
01/19/05 sect 1,2
09/20/06
12/19/07
10/21/09 sect 2
12/14/11
05/16/12 sect 1
07/23/12
11/14/12 sect 1
10/16/13
06/18/14
12/17/14
11/18/15
04/19/17
1220117
10/17/18

05/22/96 para 3, 4
11/20/96
04/15/98 sect 2
12/20/00
01/16/02 sect 1
05/15/02
10/23/02 sect 1,2
02/12/03 sect 2
06/18/03 sect 1
11/19/03 sect 2
04/21/04 sect 1
05/04/05
10/18/06 sect 1b
12/29/08
12/16/09 sect 1
01/18/12 sect 1
06/20/12 sect 2
08/15/12
12/19/12
11/20/13 sect 2
09/17/14 sect 2
02/1115
06/15/16 sect 1,2
06/21/117
07/18/18
12/19/18

08/21/96 para 4
08/20/97 sect 2
05/20/98 sect 2
09/19/01
02/20/02 sect 1
06/19/02
11/20/02
03/19/03 sect 1,2
08/20/03 sect 2
12/17/03 sect 1,2
05/19/04 sect 1
12/21/05 sect 2
12/20/06 sect 1
06/19/09 sect 1
12/16/10
03/21/12 sect 1
07/09/12
09/19/12
01/16/13
12/18/13
10/15/14
06/17/12 sect 1
10/19/16 sect 1
10/18/17 sect 1
08/15/18
01/09/19

09/18/96 para 2,4
09/17/97 sect 1a
09/15/98 sect 2
12/03/01
03/20/02
08/21/02 sect 1
12/18/02 sect 1,2
04/16/03 sect 1
09/17/03 sect 3
02/18/04 sect 2
12/15/04 sect 1
03/22/06
08/22/07
07/05/09 sect 1,3
05/18/11
04/19/12 sect 1
07/18/12
10/17/12 sect 1,2
06/19/13
05/21/14
11/19/14
10/21/15
11/16/16 sect 1,2
11/15/17 sect 1
09/19/18 sect 1
02/13/19



041719 0717119 10/16/19 11/20/19

12/18/19 01/15/20 03/18/20 04/15/20
04/29/20 05/20/20 06/17/20 sect 2 08/05/20
10/21/20 12/16/20 01/20/21 02/17/21
04/21/21 sect 2 07/21/21 10/20/21 12/15/21
01/12/22 08/17/22 sect 1,2 10/19/22 12/14/22
01/18/23 02/22/23 sect 1,2 03/31/23 04/19/23 sect 1,2
06/21/23 07/10/23 07/19/23 sect 1,2 08/16/23 sect 1,2
10/18/23 11/15/23 11/20/23 12/20/23
03/20/24 05/15/24 06/19/24 07/17/24
10/16/24 11/20/24 12/18/24 01/15/25
SECTION FOUR: Pursuant to Section 2.06(c) of the Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS

120/2.06(c)), the Board hereby approves of the destruction of the verbatim records of the
following executive session meetings, as more than eighteen (18) months has passed
since the completion of the meeting so recorded, and the Board has approved of the
written minutes of said meeting which meet the requirements of Section 2.06(a) of the
Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2.06(a)):

11/15/23 11/20/23 12/20/23
03/20/24

SECTION FIVE: SEVERABILITY. If any section, paragraph or
provision of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason,
the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or provision shall not affect
any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution.

SECTION SIX: REPEAL OF PRIOR RESOLUTIONS. All prior
Ordinances and Resolutions in conflict or inconsistent herewith are hereby expressly
repealed only to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency.

SECTION SEVEN: EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall be in full
force and effect upon its passage and approval.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

PASSED: September 17, 2025

APPROVED: September 17, 2025



President
ATTEST:

Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that | am the Secretary of the Medinah Park
District, DuPage County, lllinois, and that the foregoing is a true, complete and exact copy
of Resolution 25 - 16 enacted on September 17, 2025, approved on September 17, 2025,
as the same appears from the official records of the Medinah Park District.

Secretary






